
Audit and Accounts Committee  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Audit and Accounts Committee to be held 
as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
Tom Stannard 

Chief Executive  

 
DATE: Wednesday, 25 January 2023 

 
TIME:  2.30 pm 

 
VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 

5DA. 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 

2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting.  

 
AGENDA 

 
 GUIDANCE FOR FACE TO FACE PUBLIC MEETINGS IN THE 

SALFORD SUITE  

 

 

 2PM - 2:30PM FOR MEMBERS ONLY: TRAINING - EVALUATING 
THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE, INCLUDING 

BRIEFING ON THE SELF ASSESSMENT EXERCISE - DAVID 
SMITH/SIMON BLECKLY  

 

 

1   Apologies for Absence  

 

 

2   The Committee is asked to consider whether it agrees to the 
inclusion of the items  listed in Parts 1 and 2 of the agenda.  

 

 

3   Declarations of Interest.  

 

 

4   To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the previous 
meeting.  
 

Minutes of the meeting held on 26.10.22. 
 

(Pages 3 - 12) 

5   Matters Arising  

 

 

6   Private meeting for the committee with Internal Auditors (Head 

of Internal Audit - Simon Bleckly)  

 

 

7   Half Year 2022-23 Strategic Risk Register Update (Joint Head of 
Planning & Performance - Emma Reid; Principal Performance 
Officer - Bev Hinks)  

(Pages 13 - 34) 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Report of the Assistant Director, Strategy and Performance. 

 
8   Update on the provisional budget settlement (Verbal Update) - 

Chief Finance Officer (Joanne Hardman)  

 

 

9   Internal Audit Progress Report - Deputy Head of Internal Audit 

(David Smith)  
 

Report of the Chief Finance Officer and The Head of Internal Audit. 

 

(Pages 35 - 49) 

10   External Auditors Updates - Mazars  

 

(Pages 50 - 65) 

10a Work programme 2022/23  
 

(Pages 66 - 69) 

10b Membership  
 

 

11   URGENT BUSINESS - PART 1  

 

 

12   EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  

 

The officers consider that the following items contain exempt 
information as provided for in the Local Government Access to 

Information Act and that the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 

 Members are recommended to agree the necessary 
resolutions excluding the public from the meeting during consideration 
of this item. At the time this agenda is published no representations 

have been that this part of the meeting should be open to the public. 
 

 

13   URGENT BUSINESS - PART 2  

 

 

14   Date of Next Meeting  

 

Wednesday 22nd March 2023 at 2pm in The Salford Suite, Civic 

Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5DA. 
 

 

 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2811 
Liz Wright E-Mail: liz.wright@salford.gov.uk 



1                                                                                                                 Audit and Accounts Committee 26.10.22                                                                                                                                         
 

Audit and Accounts Committee 
In-person meeting in The Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre. 
 

Date: 26 October 2022 
Meeting commenced: 2:00pm 
Meeting ended: 3:20pm 

 
Present: 

Councillor Turner  in the Chair 
Councillors Pepper, Pevitt, G. Reynolds, Shama and Tetteh (Vice Chair) 
 
Also present: 

Councillor Hinds  Lead Member for Finance and Support Services 

 
Officers: 

Simon Bleckly  Head of Internal Audit 

Joanne Hardman  Chief Finance Officer 
Karen Murray  External Auditor (Mazars) 

Iolanda Puzio  City Solicitor and Monitoring Officer 
David Smith   Internal Audit Manager 
Tony Thompstone  Strategic Finance Manager 

Two recently appointed Audit Staff observed the meeting 
 
1. Apologies for absence 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Jones and Ed Bucci (Co-opted 
Member). 

 
2. The committee is asked to consider whether it agrees to the inclusion of the items listed 

in Parts 1 and 2 of the agenda 

 The Committee agreed to the inclusion of the items listed in Part 1 of the agenda. 

 There were no part 2 items for the Committee to consider. 

 
3. Declarations of interest 

There were no declarations of interests. 
 
4. To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the previous meeting held on 22 July 

2022 
RESOLVED: THAT the minutes of the above-mentioned meeting be approved as a correct 

record. 
 
5. Matter arising 

There were no matters arising from the previous meeting held on 22 July 2022. 
 
6. PSAA Update Report of the Chief Finance Officer – Joanne Hardman 

Consideration was given to the Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSSA) Update Report in 
respect of the appointment of an External Auditor for the period 2023/24 to 2027/28. The report 

provided an update to members of the committee on the progress made by PSAA in securing 
external audit capacity. 

 
A formal decision was taken at Council in February 2017 to confirm the proposed approach 
agreed by the Audit and Accounts Committee and the S151 Officer to opt into the national auditor 

appointment scheme. Accordingly, PSAA let five-year audit services contracts in 2017 for the first 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



2                                                                                                                 Audit and Accounts Committee 26.10.22                                                                                                                                         
 

appointing period, covering audits of the accounts from 2018/19 to 2022/23. Mazars are currently 

the council’s external auditor. 
 
PSAA have undertook the work needed to invite eligible bodies to opt-in for the next appointing 

period, from the 2023/24 audit onwards. As in previous procurement exercises, the vast majority of 
eligible bodies (99%) opted into the PSAA administered appointment scheme. The Council 

formally opted into the national auditor appointment scheme again in February 2022, following the 
recommendation of the Audit and Accounts Committee. 
 

On that basis PSAA led a procurement exercise in April 2022 to secure the required level of 
external audit capacity, for audit services, specifically the statutory audit of accounts and Best 

Value assessment and also for investigating questions raised by electors and having powers and 
responsibilities in relation to Public Interest Reports and statutory recommendations. By August 
2022 96.5% of the required capacity had been secured. 

 
The outcome of the procurement exercise was announced by PSAA on 3 October 2022, whereby: 

 Contracts have been awarded for 99.5% of the work included within the original tender which 
reflects the required capacity 

 Contracts have been offered to six suppliers (three existing suppliers, one former supplier 

and two new suppliers). The resulting share of PSAA’s work is as follows: 
o Grant Thornton 36.00% 

o Mazars 22.50% 
o Ernst & Young 20.00% 

o KPMG 14.00% 
o Bishop Fleming 3.75% 
o Azets Audit Service 3.25%  

 
PSAA will now consult with individual organisations on the proposed appointments. 

 
Whilst consultation on the fee scale will not take place until Autumn 2023. It is anticipated that 
audit fees will increase by approximately 150% compared to the last major procurement exercise 

in 2017. PSAA has made representations to government for additional financial support to meet 
these costs. 

 
The presenting officer indicated that: 

 the council have received a letter from PSAA suggesting that Mazars remain as our auditors, 

which subject to confirmation is acceptable to the council, 

 the council has until mid-November 2022 to raise any objections with PSAA, 

 the council should receive confirmation of who are auditors will be by December 2022, and 

 the guesstimate on the expected fee cost to us is £250,000.00p compared to £100,000.00p 

previously. 
 
Cllr Hinds asked if the council would be happy with any of the six auditors, if we didn’t have 

Mazars appointed as our auditors? The presenting officer confirmed that the council would be as 
we were with Grant Thornton previously. 

 
Cllr Pepper mentioned that it’s good practice not to stay with the same auditors for too long and 
asked if we used Mazars for anything else? The presenting officer confirmed that the council have 

only had Mazars for the one accounting period and we don’t use them for anything else. 
 

Cllr Pevitt commented that this auditor market was in effect a cartel, whereby the number of firms 
has been reduced whilst prices have increased … it’s just taking money away from councils. 

Page 4



3                                                                                                                 Audit and Accounts Committee 26.10.22                                                                                                                                         
 

 

Cllr Shama asked if it was possible for the council to evaluate against any other firms to ascertain 
if we can get the required services cheaper? The presenting officer confirmed that because the 
council have chosen the PSAA option, these are in effect being labelled as the ‘best choices’ 

available. However, it would be good given the current economic climate if the Government could 
assist more financially in respect of the increased fees. 

 
RESOLVED: THAT members note the progress in appointing an external auditor. 

 
7. The Internal Audit Charter 2022/23: The Head of Internal Audit – Simon Bleckly 

Consideration was given to The Internal Audit Charter 2022/23 Report, previously approved by the 

Audit and Accounts Committee in September 2021. 
 
The work of internal audit is governed by the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 

which came into effect from 1st April 2013. The Standards comprise: 

 a revised definition of internal auditing; 

 a Code of Ethics for internal auditors working in the Public Sector; 

 the Mission of Internal Audit; 

 the Core Principles for the Professional Practice of internal auditing; and 

 the Standards themselves. 

 
The Standards are mandatory for all internal auditors working in the UK public sector. The purpose 
of this Charter is to define the scope, roles, and responsibilities of the internal audit function with 

which internal audit should comply. The Charter follows the model charter document provided by 
the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA). Several modifications to the Standards occurred 

between 2017 and 2019. A copy of the Internal Audit Charter was attached at Appendix 1 to the 
report. 
 

The Charter notes that compliance with the PSIAS requires that the internal audit function shall be 
subject to a Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) in line with the Standards 

(section 19). This includes a self-assessment on a regular basis and an external assessment 
which must be conducted at least once every five years by a qualified, independent assessor or 
assessment team from outside the organisation. 

 
The last external assessment was undertaken in November 2017 and noted that the internal audit 

service conforms to the PSIAS and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note questionnaire. 
The next external assessment is due in November 2022 and will again be carried out under the 
peer review process set up by the North West Chief Audit Executive’s Group. 

 
Results of quality reviews will be reported to the Audit and Accounts Committee by the Head of 

Internal Audit on a regular basis. The final report from the next external peer review will be shared 
in full with SLT and with Audit and Accounts Committee. 
 

Cllr Reynolds sought clarification on whether the external assessment was a full one? The 
presenting officer confirmed that it was and will be carried out under the peer review process set 

up by the North West Chief Audit Executive’s Group – the peers all being Heads of Audit. 
 
Cllr Hinds asked if the presenting officer was content with how the council currently operated? The 

presenting officer confirmed that he was, especially in respect to how the internal audit function 
supports aligned corporate management frameworks. 

 
  

Page 5



4                                                                                                                 Audit and Accounts Committee 26.10.22                                                                                                                                         
 

RESOLVED: THAT Members approved the updated version of the Internal Audit Charter for 

2022/23 (attached as Appendix 1 to the report). 
 
8. Internal Audit Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme: The Head of Internal 

Audit – Simon Bleckly 

Consideration was given to The Internal Audit ‘Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme’ 

(QAIP) Report, a requirement of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), whereby the 
formal documenting of a QAIP is undertaken to provide assurance that internal audit performs its 
work in accordance with the PSIAS. This covers all aspects of the internal audi t activity and 

enables compliance with all aspects of the PSIAS to be evaluated. A copy of the updated QAIP for 
Salford City Council was attached as appendix 1 to the report. 

 
It allows for the assessment of the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal audit activity and 
identifies opportunities for improvement. This is through both internal and external assessments. 

The requirement for an external assessment of the internal audit activity is at least once in every 5 
years. The next external assessment is due at the end of 2022 and will be carried out as part of a 

peer review process set up by the North West Chief Audit Executives’ Group. 
 
The results of the QAIP must be reported to senior management and the Audit and Accounts 

Committee on an annual basis. This may be provided within internal audit’s annual report and 
opinion. 

 
Cllr Hinds asked if the need for ad hoc training was added to the Internal Audit Development Plan 
each year? The Chief Finance Officer responded that there was nothing unusual on this issue, that 

it was included within the existing budget being based upon informed discussion of training needs 
across the organisation. 

 
RESOLVED: THAT Members approved the content of this report and consider/ comment on and 

approve the updated Internal Audit Quality Assurance and Improvement programme (attached as 

Appendix 1 to the report). 
 
9. Internal Audit Progress Report (Including Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Half 

Year Update) Strategic Internal Audit Manager – David Smith 

Consideration was given to the Internal Audit Progress Report (including Counter Fraud, Bribery 

and Corruption Half Year Update), which provided an update informing Members of the resources 
utilised by Internal Audit during 2022/23 and outcomes, the activities undertaken in the reporting 

period, the status of work currently being undertaken and new work commenced. 
 
A summary of activity details provided included: 

a) audits completed and reports issued: 

 8 audits have been finalised, since the last progress report to Audit and Accounts Committee, 

and the corresponding number of agreed actions and overall level of assurance provided for 
each of those audits. 

 summary reports have been provided to Committee Members for each of these 8 reviews. 

 
b) post implementation reviews (PIR’s): 

 two PIR’s have been finalised in this period in respect of Corporate Health Inequalities and 
Wharton Primary School – showing the number of agreed actions and the number of those 

actions now implemented or outstanding. It also provides an indication of the direction of 
travel regarding the overall level of assurance. 

 more detailed Committee Summary reports have been provided to Committee Members for 

each of these ahead of this meeting: 

Page 6



5                                                                                                                 Audit and Accounts Committee 26.10.22                                                                                                                                         
 

o Corporate Health Inequalities 

o Wharton Primary School 
 

c) OTHER WORK: 

 Assurance Work (Reporting): draft reports have been issued or are being prepared in the 
following areas: 

o Fiddlers Lane Primary 
o Holy Family Primary School 
o Key Decisions 

 

 Grant Certification: providing assurance that the following grants have be used in accordance 

with the respective awarding bodies’ requirements: 
o Bus Subsidy Operators Grant 2021/22 

o SCC/SCL Arts Council National Lottery Project Grant (Rediscovering Salford) 
o Adult Weight Management Grant 2021/22 
o Universal Drug Treatment Grant 2021/22 

o Local authority Test and Trace Contain Outbreak Management Fund Grant 2021/22 
 

 Covid-19 Business Grants and Energy Rebate Payments: post payment assurance work 
(exercises and returns) continue to be undertaken in response to the Government 
Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) requirements for the 

following business grant types: 
o Local Restrictions Support Grants (Open) 

o Local Restrictions Support Grant (Sector) 
o Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) Addendum: Tier 4 
o Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) Addendum (November) 

o Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) Addendum: 5 January onwards - first six-week 
payment 

o Closed Business Lockdown Payment 
o Additional Restrictions Covid-19 Business Grant Scheme 

 

 Pre-payment assurance work has also continued for payments made to residents as part of 
the Government’s Energy Rebate scheme. 

 

 Information Governance and Data/ Digital: providing on-going assurance and consultative 

support to the council’s continued compliance with the requirements of: 
o ISO 27001 
o Payment Card Industry 

 

 Supporting Squads, Transformation and Change: Internal Audit is currently involved in 

‘squads’ supporting: 
o Project Imagine (Replacement system for CareFirst): providing consultancy advice or 

independent assurance as/ when our input is appropriate. 

o Procurement Governance Squad: providing consultancy advice. 
 

 Resources: 
o following our recent recruitment exercise, two Internal Auditors have been appointed, 

joining up with the team in October 2022, returning the team to its normal resource level. 

o sickness levels have remained low with no discernible impact on the Team’s performance. 
 

 Collaboration: 

Page 7



6                                                                                                                 Audit and Accounts Committee 26.10.22                                                                                                                                         
 

o We have on-going practitioner representation on sub-groups of the North West Heads of 

Internal Audit Groups. 
o The Deputy Head of Internal Audit is a member of CIPFA’s North West Audit Risk and 

Governance Group. 

o The Head of Internal Audit attends the North West Chief Audit Executive Group meetings, 
is a member of the Local Authority Chief Auditors Network and chairs the Fighting Fraud 

and Corruption Locally Operational Group. 
 

 Corporate Counter Fraud and Investigations: 

o during the Covid-19 Pandemic the council’s two counter fraud officers were seconded to 
providing assurance on the business grants and the track and trace isolation payments 

(until March 2022). Since then the two counter fraud officers have gone back to their 
routine work on counter fraud, initially revisiting the caseload that had been suspended 
due to the council’s Covid-19 response to assess whether the investigation needs to 

continue, or the case should be closed. 
o liaising with the local Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) fraud team at Stretford to 

put processes in place for any cases suitable for joint working. 
o liaising with Salford’s Disability Blue Badge team and Parking Services to commence 

action in respect of Blue Badge Fraud. 

 

 Referrals: continuing to be available to support the business with internal investigations, 

providing technical skills and advice when called upon and managing the whistleblowing 
hotline/ on-line referrals. 

 

 Fraud Risk: Earlier in the year, the Head of Audit facilitated a session with counter fraud 
representatives from across the country to identify the key fraud risks affecting local 

authority’s post-pandemic. This identified five key areas, none of which are new risks, but the 
changes in environment in the past two years have increased their occurrence nationally: 

o Cyber and cyber-enabled 
o Employee fraud 
o Procurement fraud 

o Serious and organised crime 
o Social care 

We will work with the relevant services to raise awareness and ensure that there are 
appropriate measures in place in Salford to mitigate the risk of fraud in these areas. 

 

The Head of Audit incorporated the findings from the session into an article published in the 
Institute of Internal Auditors’ “Audit & Risk” magazine, setting out how internal auditors could 

contribute towards mitigating these risks. 
 
Cllr Shama asked what is done as part of an audit if there is a low level of assurance? The 

presenting officer confirmed that an action plan is created and then agreed/ signed-off with 
management. A follow-up review takes place within six months. 

 
Cllr Reynolds said that she was glad that the team had gone back to Wharton Primary School. Cllr 
Pepper stated that she’s just been appointed to the school’s governors/ board. 

 
Cllr Reynolds queried why gifts/ hospitality appeared to have only limited assurance, as she’d 

assumed that everyone is reporting anything that they receive? The presenting officer confirmed 
that there isn’t a robust system, there isn’t a consistent approach and there are delays to 
information appearing on the system, so it’s difficult to ascertain the position. This should all 

hopefully improve following the review of the council’s constitution. 

Page 8



7                                                                                                                 Audit and Accounts Committee 26.10.22                                                                                                                                         
 

 

Cllr Tetteh asked that with two new recruits in post is the team expecting much more work being 
undertaken? The presenting officer confirmed that their work was likely to be focused upon staff 
related activity rather than councillors. 

 
Cllr Pevitt stated that he thought the system was robust but somewhat confusing as to what and 

which circumstances it applied. The City Solicitor and Monitoring Officer confirmed that she was 
happy that the system is working. 
 
RESOLVED: THAT Members considered and noted the contents of the report. 

 
10. External Auditors Updates: External Auditors – Mazars – Karen Murray 

Consideration was given to the Audit Strategy Memorandum for the Council Year Ended 31 March 
2022, which summarised Mazars: 

 
a) audit approach: which is risk-based and primarily driven by the issues we consider lead to a 

higher risk of material misstatement of the accounts. Once we have completed our risk 
assessment, we develop our audit strategy and design audit procedures in response to this 
assessment. 

 
b) highlighted significant audit risks and areas of key judgements, these being: 

 Management override of controls. 

 Net defined benefit liability valuation. 

 Valuation of property, plant and equipment including investment properties. 

 Applicability of Group Financial Statements. 

 Valuation of Airport Shares. 

 
c) and provided the Council with the details of their audit team. 

 

 Others matters highlighted: 

o 2021/22 audit of accounts should be completed and meet November 2022 deadline. 
 
Cllr Reynolds asked if the council were near to bottoming out the pension liability issue with the 

care organisation, in respect of those staff who transferred over? The External Auditor confirmed 
that this has been agreed and is in the process of being resolved, following recent discussions. 

 
Cllr Pepper sought clarity on the only outstanding issue, that being a concern on ‘infrastructure’? 
The External Auditor confirmed that this was indeed the case. 

 
RESOLVED: THAT Members noted the update report. 

 
11. Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) – Annual Report 2021/22 The City 

Solicitor – Iolanda Puzio and The Head of Internal Audit – Simon Bleckly 

Consideration was given to the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) – Annual 
Report 2021/22, which provided an overview of RIPA and its use within Salford, for which there 

have been no authorisations since the last report to this Committee in September 2021. Actually, 
the Council has not used its powers under RIPA since 2013, which is in line with many other 
councils. 

 
RIPA sets out a regulatory framework for the use of covert surveillance techniques by public 

authorities, should they on occasion, need to use covert surveillance in order to carry out its 
functions effectively. For example, trading standards enforcement activities against rogue traders 

Page 9



8                                                                                                                 Audit and Accounts Committee 26.10.22                                                                                                                                         
 

and loan sharks, community and fire safety, fraud investigations and child protection. Statutory 

guidance states that elected members of a local authority should review the authority’s use of 
RIPA and set the policy at least once a year. 
 

The Monitoring Officer has asked the Legal Service to review the Council’s policies and 
procedures in respect of RIPA undertaken to date since 2020, when due to changes of personnel 

work commenced at that time but was not concluded, with a view to finalising it and presenting it to 
this Committee as soon as possible. 
 

Cllr Tetteh asked that if these powers are available to us, why aren’t we using them, is because of 
fear, time or another reason? The City Solicitor and Monitoring Officer confirmed that we try to 

adopt the least intrusive means in our investigations, that don’t interfere with people’s human 
rights, and that there are other methods that officers can use. However, use of RIPA training does 
take place every 2-3 years. 

 
Cllr Hinds mentioned that a previous City Solicitor and Monitoring Officer had taken the committee 

through the procedure and powers available, highlighting potential concerns. The City Solicitor and 
Monitoring Officer stated that it was still important for us to be aware of the powers even if we’re 
not using them. 

 
RESOLVED: THAT Members: 

1. Noted the update in respect of RIPA activity/ applications since the last report in September 
2021. 

2. Note the work being undertaken to update RIPA policies and procedures and that these will be 

presented to a future meeting. 
 
12. Work Programme 2022/23 and Membership 

Consideration was given to the Committees work programme, whereby it was agreed: 

 that the provisional date for the next meeting of the Committee for Wednesday 30 November 

2022 at 2pm be cancelled and for scheduled items from the work programme to be rolled 
forward to the next meeting thereafter, these being: 

o Annual Governance Statement 
o Audited Statement of Account 
o External Auditors Update, and 

 that the next meeting of the Committee is Wednesday 25 January 2023 at 2pm, with the 
following agenda: 

- 
25th JANUARY 2023 - Meeting Date and Agenda Items Responsible officer (s) 

Member Training, TBC date/ 2pm 

 Annual Evaluation of the Effectiveness of the Audit 

Committee (How the Committee adds value to the Council) 
including briefing on the Self-Assessment Exercise  

 
David Smith/ Simon Bleckly 

A&AC Meeting, TBC date/ 2.30pm – Part 1  

1. Private meeting for committee with Internal Auditors 

(Simon Bleckly) 

Simon Bleckly/ David Smith 

2. Update on the provisional budget settlement Joanne Hardman 

3. 2021-22 Strategic Risk Register Jacquie Russell/ Emma Reid 

4. Internal Audit Progress Report David Smith 

5. External Auditors Updates: Karen Murray - Mazars 
Part 2 

1. Current investigations update 
 
David Smith 

 

Page 10



9                                                                                                                 Audit and Accounts Committee 26.10.22                                                                                                                                         
 

 
RESOLVED: THAT Members noted the work programme. 

 
13. Any Other Business 

Cllr G Reynolds asked what the latest was in respect of recruiting another independent member? 
The City Solicitor and Monitoring Officer confirmed that following the receipt of recent guidance on 

Audit and Accounts Committees, which proposed that each has at least two independent 
members, an advert has been drafted and will be going onto the Greater Jobs website. A panel 
approved by this committee (proposed to be: Cllr Turner, Cllr Reynolds and the Head of Audit), will 

short-list and interview candidates and will recommend an appointment to the committee for their 
approval. 

 
Cllr Tetteh asked if we can place the advert in other places, so as to maximise our reach for 
candidates? The City Solicitor and Monitoring Officer will check with HR. 

 
ACTION: The City Solicitor and Monitoring Officer to check with HR if it’s possible to place the 

advert in other places, so as to maximise our reach for candidates. 
 
The External Auditor indicated that other GM authorities are facing similar challenges in recruiting. 

 
Cllr Pepper thought that the current renumeration of £343 per year for four meetings was quite 

low. The City Solicitor and Monitoring Officer confirmed that it was the current rate for an 
independent member, but that it might be possible to ask the IRP to review this in the future. 
 

The City Solicitor and Monitoring Officer confirmed that they get their payment once appointed 
irrespective of if they attend. 

 
Cllr Tetteh asked if an independent members renumeration was separate to any attendance 
allowance, and if they received a laptop and any other support/ equipment? The City Solicitor and 

Monitoring Officer believed that they wouldn’t receive a laptop or any other support/ equipment. 
 
14. URGENT BUSINESS – PART 1 

There was no urgent business raised. 
 

15. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

The officers consider that the following items contain exempt information as provided for in the 

Local Government Access to Information Act and that the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. Members are recommended 
to agree the necessary resolutions excluding the public from the meeting during consideration of 

this item. At the time this agenda is published no representations have been that this part of the 
meeting should be open to the public. 

 
16. URGENT BUSINESS – PART 2 

There was no urgent business raised. 
 
17. Date of the next meeting 

RESOLVED: THAT the provisional date for the next meeting of the Committee for Wednesday 30 
November 2022 at 2pm be cancelled and for scheduled items from the work programme to be 
rolled forward to the next subsequent meeting, this being: 

 Wednesday 25 January 2023 at 2pm. 
 

 

Page 11



10                                                                                                                 Audit and Accounts Committee 26.10.22                                                                                                                                         
 

 

 
Committee Members attendance 2022/23 

 = present; A = Apologies submitted; Blank = No apologies submitted. 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Councillor/ Member Name June 
22.06.

22 

July 
27.07.

22 

Oct 
26.10.

22 

Jan 
25.01.

23 

March 
22.03.

23 

Councillor L Turner (chair)      

Councillor D Bailey A A    

Councillor R Jones   A A   

Councillor T Pepper      

Councillor M Pevitt A A    

Councillor G Reynolds      

Councillor A Shama      

Councillor N Tetteh      

Councillor B Hinds (invitee) A     

Edoardo Bucci (co-opted member)   A   

Page 12



1 

2022-23 Strategic Risk Register – Half-year update   

SCCSRR.001 Financial Resilience 
Risk Owner: 
Assigned to: 

Debbie Brown 
Joanne Hardman 

If financial resilience is weakened then the council may have inadequate resources to meet service demands and priorities, inadequate reserves to respond to financial risks and may be unable 
to set a legal, balanced budget. As a result, the appointed auditor may issue a qualified report, a s114 notice may be issued, spending may be suspended and government may step in to 
administer the council's functions. Furthermore, if the nature and interrelation of financial risks is not fully understood, then the council will make poor financial decisions, leading to inefficient use 
of resources.  If not carefully managed in partnership with Salford Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) there is a risk that implementation of recommendations from 'The White Paper - 
Integration and Innovation: working together to improve health and social care for all' might undermine long established, well embedded local partnership working and unravel existing 
arrangements that work well for Salford, including participation in the pooled / integrated funds. This could result in an inability to deliver the ambitions outlined in our Salford Locality Plan and / 
or other city-wide strategies.  
Financial resilience is the ability of the council to withstand financial strain arising from various causes including changes to local authority funding, increasing demand for services, higher costs, 
loss of income sources, an increasingly complex delivery landscape and changes in the economy overall. An unprecedented event such as the Covid19 pandemic can bring the full range of 
these risks to bear on the council’s financial position. There is no single indicator of overall risk to financial resilience, but CIPFA has identified a number of areas which should be scrutinised, 
focusing especially on the adequacy of reserves, the consequences of borrowing, vulnerability to social care cost increases, the ability to raise funds other than from government sources and 
vulnerability to changes in the business rates retention system. The council has identified significant risks in each of these areas.   

Existing Controls 

The council's financial planning arrangements include preparation by the finance team of detailed financial forecasts, based on the best available information and including prudent assumptions 
based on professional judgement and external advice. These forecasts are built into the council's strategies as follows:  

 a balanced budget to put into effect the council's service plans for the forthcoming year, matched by available funding and including a risk assessment of the adequacy of general reserves.  
 a medium-term financial strategy (MTFS) to set out how the council will fund Salford's ambitions and priorities over the next three years, including the identification of any budget gap in 

order for opportunities to reach a balanced position to be identified and assessed.  

 a risk-based approach to the use of reserves, identifying appropriate reserve levels and ensuring that reserves are not depleted without first identifying a strategy to restore them to risk-
assessed levels during the MTFS period.  

 a treasury management strategy to manage the council's cash flows, including an investment strategy focused on the security of principal sums and a borrowing strategy to manage interest 
payable and other charges.  

 a capital strategy that prioritises capital investment programmes, identifies the financial impact of investment in schemes and limits the amount of unsupported borrowing to be taken.  
  
Budget monitoring, comparing actual performance against approved budget, is undertaken throughout the financial year and reported to service management teams, the Corporate Management 
Team, Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Where services are experiencing budget pressures, focussed ‘deep dives’ are undertaken and reported to members. The impact of 
pressures and any recovery activity is reflected within outturn forecasts enabling a strategic, corporate response. Where a residual deficit is forecast, a number of actions will be explored 
including:-  

 use of any service or non-specific underspends to offset pressures elsewhere within the budget  

 accessing external funding ensuring compliance with any funding conditions  
 use of reserves  

 use of general balances  
  review of spend and identification of potential savings  
A risk assessment is a critical element in the review of these options. Alongside the work undertaken to balance the annual budget, any ongoing impact on the MTFS will be explored with the 
strategy being updated and reported to CMT and members.  
In order to ensure that decision making is based on sound financial information the finance team, working with service groups, ensures that the council’s accounts appropriately and accurately 
reflect activity and commitments.  
  
Health and Care Reform:  
Existing partnership working arrangements for integrated commissioning are well embedded across the system.  
Locality leaders are fully engaged in discussions for health and care reform.  
All partners are engaged in the new transition to ICS arrangements  including the newly established ICS Transition Board and various workstream delivery groups.   

Appendix 1 

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 7



2 

Existing Controls - Assurances 

Annual budget setting process culminating in Council approval of annual budget, MTFS, treasury management strategy and capital strategy.  
Accuracy of budget monitoring and forecasting when compared to outturn position.  
Review of main financial systems and processes by internal audit  
Annual audit of the statement of accounts by external auditor.  
 
Health and Care Reform:  
ICS Transition Board and Programme Reports through existing governance channels.  
Reports through existing governance channels.   

Gaps in Existing Controls 

None identified.   

Original Risk 12 Current Risk 12 Target Risk 8 Latest Update 18 Oct 2022 

   

Next Assessment 01 Jan 2023 

Risk Treatment Plan 

Major 4 Major 4 Major 4 Monthly monitoring against savings targets and budgets helps the 
Council to identify any slippages in its savings programme as early as 
possible.  
The forecast in-year position is for a balanced budget with inflationary 
pressures being met from pay and price provisions and non-recurrent 
funding.  
In advance of the local government settlement being announced in 
December, various scenarios have been modelled to inform the 
budget gap for the period of the MTFS. Proposals are being 
developed through innovate workstreams and individual services 
which will be reviewed in the light of the local government settlement.  
The capital programme has been reviewed in terms of timing and 
deliverability of schemes for 2022/23. Bids for future capital 
programme funding are being developed with the impact upon the 
revenue budget to be reviewed as part of the annual budget and 
MTFS process.  
Treasury management position is under regular review to consider 
the impact of interest rate rises on budget assumptions.   

Likely 3 Likely 3 Unlikely 2 

Risk Identified 12-May-2021 Risk Assessed 01-Oct-2022 Target Date 31-Mar-2022 

Risk Movement since last assessment 
 

Increasing Risk History  

Potential actions for improvement – Half-year update 

The council approved a balanced annual budget for 2022/23 at its meeting in February 2022. The medium-term financial 
strategy covering the period to 2024/25 was also approved which set out the financial challenge facing the council in 
future years. This will form the starting point for setting the 2023/24 annual budget and extended medium term strategy. 
For 2022/23 we are forecasting a balanced position with key pressures in services offset in year.  
Key issues remain:-  

 various funding changes have been anticipated in recent years including business rate reform and reset and the 
introduction of fair funding however implementation has been delayed.  

 financial impact of health reform in terms of the overall level of financial resources available but also the process for 
managing these resources and associated risks.  

 ability to deliver savings through the innovate programme.  

 resilience of the collection fund in terms of growth and our ability to collect council tax and business rates.  
 impact of inflationary pressures upon existing assumptions for both revenue and capital spend.  

 development of business cases to support any revenue and capital investment.  
 adequacy of reserves with further assessment to be undertaken as part of the budget setting process.  
  
There is a high degree of uncertainty surrounding external funding arrangements for 2023/24 and beyond. Fair funding 
has been delayed further and the implications of the Chancellor’s mini budget on local authority funding are not fully 
known at this stage. Furthermore, we are in a period of high inflation with CPI running at 9.9% for August and as such, we 
are experiencing increasing costs from both our contracts and our discretionary spend. Finance team continue to work 
through funding scenarios which feed into current budget projections.   

P
age 14



3 

SCCSRR.002 Stability and capacity of workforce and maintaining a strong 
organisational culture 

Risk Owner: 
Assigned to: 

Debbie Brown 
Sam Betts 

If the council does not have sufficient capacity and capability in its workforce to deliver services at the right time in a flexible, integrated and placed based way this may result in increased 
demand for more specialist services, resident dissatisfaction and impact upon employee engagement and wellbeing.   

Existing Controls 

Through a squad working approach the council continues to make progress with significant change programmes across all three service directorates utilising the Salford Way change 
methodology. Workforce Panel have considered an update on (MyWork) which is the Council's approach to enabling people to work smarter reducing unnecessary travel and supporting place-
based working.  
#Leading Salford leadership framework and development programme to ensure that we recruit, develop and retain leaders with the right skills and behaviours to operate effectively.  
Monthly monitoring against savings targets and budgets helps the Council to identify any slippages in its savings programmes as early as possible. HR and OD work closely with service 
directorates to redesign services in response to public service reform, new and emerging technologies and new ways of working. Ensuring appropriate workforce development plans are in place 
to ensure we have people in the right place with the right skills maximising the opportunities that the apprenticeship levy provides.   

Existing Controls - Assurances 

None currently identified - requires further consideration   

Gaps in Existing Controls 

Pay Awards is dependent on national negotiations. Council has budgeted for a 3% pay award. Union ask is £2,000 on every SCP or retail price index 11.10% as at July 2022.   

Original Risk 12 Current Risk 12 Target Risk 9 Latest Update 15 Sep 2022 

   

Next Assessment 01 Jan 2023 

Risk Treatment Plan 

Major 4 Major 4 Serious  3 Priority actions 

 Further develop and embed a strong flexible and hybrid working 
offer.  

 Develop a structured approach to succession planning with a 
framework for the identification of critical posts/workforce plans.  

 Develop a suite of engagement and feedback tools to enhance 
employee voice across all service areas (surveys, focus groups, 
exit and stay put interviews etc.).  

 Develop and implement an equitable pay and reward strategy to 
address current challenges being faced.  

 The Salford Manager - clear expectations of all managers across 
the organisation.  

 Refine the #LeadingSalford behaviour and development 
frameworks.  

 Core leadership and management development programme.   

Likely 3 Likely 3 Likely 3 

Risk Identified 12-May-2021 Risk Assessed 01-Oct-2022 Target Date 31-Mar-2023 

Risk Movement since last 
assessment  

Increasing Risk History 
 

Potential actions for improvement – Half-year update 

Further monitoring of data is required to understand managers who are receiving training and services the training is not 
reaching.  
The Salford Manager and #LeadingSalford behaviour framework will be developed in the second half of the year. 
Surveys in People and Place to take place following the latest Service Reform survey.  
To recognise and respond to a range of workforce challenges as they relate to capacity, recruitment and retention, and 
turnover together with the impact that the cost-of-living crisis is having on our employees and families in July 2022 the 
council committed to the development and implementation of an equitable pay and reward strategy to include a 
fundamental review of current pay structures with changes to be implemented in April 2023.   
Significant progress has been made through a joint approach with the trade unions based on agreed key principles and 

P
age 15



4 

an evidence-led approach and a revised model has been developed which addresses the issues with the current pay 
structure and enables the council to offer competitive salaries to ensure capacity and capability to deliver excellent 
services for our residents.  The next stage will be to take the proposals forward through consultation and formal 
governance and decision-making arrangements with final ratification at full council in February 2023 for implementation in 
April 2023.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 16



5 

SCCSRR.003 Infectious disease outbreaks (including Coronavirus) 
Risk Owner: 
Assigned to: 

Dr Muna Abdel Aziz 
Gillian McLauchlan 

Salford faces a risk from infectious diseases outbreaks (including vaccine preventable disease, emerging and new diseases) which could involve loss of life, severe demand pressures affecting 
essential services and may also result in issues of community cohesion.   

Existing Controls 

National command and control arrangements in place via UKHSA – communications alerts received through ICC NW  
Salford Health Protection Board horizons scans for the city on emerging threats, responses to risk / alerts from UKHSA and/or other national bodies – Salford HPB accountable and feeds into 
Salford’s locality board and Health & Wellbeing Board.  
Salford, Greater Manchester and national Plans in place including  

 GM Multi-agency Outbreak Plan.  
 Greater Manchester High Consequence Infectious Disease (HCID).  

 GM COVID 19 Outbreak Plan.  

 Salford COVID 19 Outbreak Management Plan.  
 National Emergency and pandemic plan.  

 Salford Business continuity plans.  
Salford command and control structure would be activated to respond accordingly with multi-agency partners Vaccination preventable diseases GM NHS England leads on commissioning of 
vaccination services. The NHS England team working with Salford City Council and partners on increasing vaccination uptake.   

Existing Controls - Assurances 

Delivery of outbreak plans are led by the Deputy Director of Public Health and the monitoring is responsibility of the Health Protection Board.  
The Salford outbreak Management Plan sets out the arrangements in place to prevent, control and reduce transmission of the viruses, to protect the vulnerable, to prevent increased demand on 
health care services, and to address health protection, infection control and environmental health associated impacts which will support the city’s social and economic response and recovery. 
The plan is reviewed on an annual basis  
In terms of covid response - Salford COVID outbreak plan is followed which ensures Infection prevention and control messages and personal protection for staff and the public, appropriate 
business continuity plans to be activated. Stepping up surge capacity if needed. There are inequities in covid vaccination in the city therefore immunisation improvement (which may not be 
available in the short term) to protect contacts and to control the outbreak.   

Gaps in Existing Controls 

Many infectious diseases that can be prevented or the severity of illness can be reduced through vaccination. There are inequalities in vaccination coverage across the city in the covid 
vaccination but also flu and routine immunisations. There is a vaccination improvement plan in development to support increasing uptake in routine vaccination and the city will be supporting 
national catch-up campaigns and introduction of new schedules to vaccines.  
New and reemergent diseases represent a global challenge like polio, measles after worldwide schedules have been disrupted through the pandemic with many people being partially or not 
vaccinated.   

Original Risk 12 Current Risk 12 Target Risk 8 Latest Update 26 Jul 2022 

   

Next Assessment 01 Jan 2023  

Risk Treatment Plan 

Major 4 Major 4 Major 4 Following the COVID 19 outbreak emergency plans, outbreak plans 
and pandemic plans. COVID is still in an epidemic phase – as the 

Likely 3 Likely 3 Unlikely 2 

P
age 17



6 

Risk Identified 21-Feb-2020 Risk Assessed 01-Oct-2022 Target Date 31-Mar-2023 situation is not stable or predictable with risk of new variants which 
could have a greater impact mortality and morbidity for a number of 
reasons vaccine escape, severity. The trans ition from pandemic to 
endemic will be gradual and doesn’t happen overnight, therefore this 
requires caution. In time, vaccines and effective treatments can make 
the virus more predictable. It’s important to consider that being in an 
endemic COVID-19 may translate to continued mask wearing in 
places like public transport and indoor settings, and offices. This may 
be especially important during wintertime peaks, when respiratory 
viruses like SARS-CoV-2 are easier to transmit. In Salford, we have 
moved to a sustainable governance structure standing down the 
strategic coordinating group (SCCG), All member briefing, mayoral 
briefing. A weekly report is submitted to CMT and Lead Member for 
health and care briefing on the current situation. Covid is a standing 
agenda on the health protection board and the health protection team 
leads on the response of covid and reduction of other infectious 
diseases, with escalation routes to CMT and LMB with concerns.   

Risk Movement since last 
assessment  

Constant Risk History 
 

Potential actions for improvement – Half year update 

Over the summer COVID rates have risen and the risk remains high with emergence of new variants from the frequent 
mutations of the virus.  
The Salford COVID-19 Escalation and Response Plan has been produced with four levels of Risk and response that are 
based on the early warning system and we are monitoring pressures on NHS and critical services. All risk assessment 
templates have been updated. Comms messages have continued with public health advice to stop the spread, focusing 
on a recommendation to stay home if unwell and complete courses of vaccination.  
We continue to advise a precautionary approach with COVID secure arrangements in place as part of the Health and 
Safety duty in all settings. The Health Protection Team continue to advise settings with cases and/or outbreaks for the 
steps they need to take to protect their staff, clients and their business continuity.  
Due to disruption to worldwide vaccination schedules and increased social contact we have received alerts on potential 
outbreaks for polio and other vaccine preventable diseases, along with increased susceptibility of particular groups of the 
population to circulating viruses e.g. monkeypox.   

 

P
age 18



7 

SCCSRR.004 Cyber security 
Risk Owner: 
Assigned to: 

Debbie Brown 
Steven Fry; Debbie McCarron 

Cyber Security (CS) is a term used to define measures taken to protect against threats to security through accidental circumstances, actions / events or through deliberate attack.  
If sufficient measures are not in place to combat the risk of threats that can originate from the internet, corporate networks, maintenance activities, software upgrades and unauthorised access etc. 
this has the potential to result in incident that will have a major impact on the City Council's ability to operate and deliver services.   

Existing Controls 

At present the following measures are in place:  
Protective monitoring: 
 All PCs, Laptops and Servers on the Council’s IT network are protected by Virus Protection Systems, which are controlled centrally by ICT and cannot be disabled.  

 All incoming mail is scanned automatically by 2 separate systems to ensure that it does not contain viruses or malware.  

 Multiple layers of firewall are in place on all external connections to the Council’s network, preventing unauthorised access to data and systems.  
 All systems that are accessible from outside the Council, such as the Customer portal, are located in a special area of the network that is separated from the main Council network.  

 Regular penetration tests are carried out on all external access points to the Council’s network to ensure unauthorised access cannot be achieved.  
 JANet who provide our internet services to schools has dedicated security and network teams that have expertise in dealing with DoS attacks. As well as investigating incidents targeted at 

them, they assist customers when they are targeted.  
Threat hunting: 

 Deep Security by Trend Micro is deployed which delivers automated server protection through host-based security controls, including anti-malware, intrusion prevention (IPS), firewall, integrity 
monitoring, application control and log inspection.  

 Structural modification – inspecting links and data within documents/emails for malicious code attempting to redirect unsuspecting users. These links can be manipulated before onward 
delivery.  

Vulnerability management: 

 Micro segmentation – the ability to logically segment parts of our Server Infrastructure ensuring a single compromised host does not impact the rest of the Infrastructure.  

 Access Layer segmentation – Lateral communication is prevented at Layer 2 to mitigate virus/malware movement at the network layer, so device independent.  
Cyber Threat Intelligence: 

 In Office 365 we are leveraging O365 threat analytics while they are on and off premise for indicators of compromise with the user account and device objects.  
Organisational awareness: 

 User awareness – regular communication with end users highlighting the risks to staff and users to always question what they receive and whether to open files. The first line of defence is 
often employee education. Investment in mandatory e-learning and organisational development around digital skills is being widened.  

Security Operations Centre: 

 Security Operations Centre (SOC) in partnership with Home of Skills and Technology (HOST) and Microsoft. This provides dedicated monitoring, analytics and threat detection across the 
whole end point and infrastructure estate. This coupled with the existing controls provides 24/7 enhanced protection. Roll out of multi factor authentication.  

Membership of Regional and National Information Security Groups  

 Active members of the Northwest Warning, Advice & Reporting Point (WARP) and the government’s Cyber Security Information Sharing Partnership (CiSP), which provide guidance and 
advance warning of known threats.   

Existing Controls - Assurances 

 Business impact assessment  
 Business continuity plan  

 Disaster recovery plan  
 ISO27001 certification  

 Public Services Network (PSN) Code of Connection  

 NHS Data Security & Protection (DSP) Toolkit  
 3 Yearly rolling internal audit plan   

P
age 19



8 

Gaps in Existing Controls 

  

Original Risk 16 Current Risk 16 Target Risk 12 Latest Update 13 Oct 2022 

   

Next Assessment 01 Jan 2023 

Risk Treatment Plan 

Major 4 Major 4 Major 4 The DDaT team and the council’s Data Protection Officer (DPO) 
continually review cyber security defences and controls to monitor the 
threat.  
The Security Operations Centre (SOC) continues to monitor malicious 
activity and, where appropriate, takes  evasive action.  
The rollout of multi-factor authentication, which adds another layer of 
security, has already been rolled out to Service Reform users  and is 
currently being rolled out in the Place Directorate. This rollout will 
continue, and when complete, should lower the current risk level.   

Very Likely 4 Very Likely 4 Likely 3 

Risk Identified 04-Dec-2019 Risk Assessed 01-Oct-2022 Target Date 31-Mar-2022 

Risk Movement since last 
assessment  

Constant Risk History 
 

Potential actions for improvement – Half-year update 

The rollout of multi-factor authentication, which adds another layer of security, has already been rolled out to Service 
Reform users and is currently being rolled out in the Place Directorate. This rollout will continue, and when complete, 
should lower the current risk level.  
DDaT are about to introduce banner headings on all email messages where the security cannot be assured, warning 
users to take extra care.   

 

P
age 20



9 

SCCSRR.005 Impact of climate change 
Risk Owner: 
Assigned to: 

John Searle 
Jim Wensley 

All the current science and empirical evidence suggests that climate change is leading to increasing frequency of severe weather, be that high rainfall and flooding or heatwaves. Salford is as 
vulnerable to these types of events as the rest of Greater Manchester and the region.  
Failure to deliver on climate change initiatives, particularly those that adapt Salford to the impacts of local climate change, risk exposing the council to outcomes including flooding and heat 
stress. These risks are short, medium and long term with impacts likely to be increasingly high without interventions. Failure to implement measures to reduce the use of energy and carbon, 
within the required timescales impacting on achieving long term carbon reduction targets will have a short-term reputational and leadership risk to the city council.   

Existing Controls 

The City already has in place Civil Contingency plans to react/respond to events as they happen, working with the whole range of civil agencies (SRR.006 in the Strategic Risk Register).  
The Council has declared a climate emergency and we have in place a suite of Greater Manchester and Salford City Council Policies to drive change across the City to react to the climate 
change threat.  
Salford City Council is committed to the GM 5 Year Environment Plan (March 2019) – which includes immediate mitigation and adaptation measures and further innovation measures needed to 
meet the challenge of Climate Change and meeting a science-based target for the City of Carbon Neutrality by 2038. This requires on average a 15% annual reduction in emissions.  
We have organised Salford's Climate Change work so that it reflects GM's five-year Environment Plan of which Salford's Climate Action Board are in place to oversee progress against delivery.   

Existing Controls - Assurances 

The Salford Strategic Flood Forum enables different parts of the city council and relevant external partners to discuss flood risks and mitigation opportunities within the city, in addition to 
continuous joint working with relevant partners. The flood forum receives regular updates on the implementation of Salford's Local Flood Risk Management Strategy which contains a number of 
measures designed to mitigate flood risk within the city. One of the main measures completed in recent years was the construction of an additional flood storage basin at Castle Irwell.   

Gaps in Existing Controls 

  

Original Risk 6 Current Risk 9 Target Risk 4 Latest Update 21 Oct 2022 

   

Next Assessment 01 Jan 2023 

Risk Treatment Plan 

Serious  3 Serious  3 Significant 2 The Place Directorate continually reviews City and GM policies and 
action plans in this area and work resources to enable the City to 
respond to the Climate Change threat and our stated aim of achieving 
carbon neutrality by 2038.  
The city council takes its responsibilities regarding flooding very 
seriously. As an example, applications for new development in flood 
risk areas are carefully scrutinised to ensure that the development 
proposals are safe, in line with the city council's development and 
flood risk supplementary planning guidance. Developing approaches 
to biodiversity and greening through the city should reduce the impact 
of urban heat islands during heat events.  
In the event that a major flooding incident occurs emergency planning 
procedures are in place and staff are trained to respond. The training 
includes knowledge of the operational procedures of the flood basins 

Unlikely 2 Likely 3 Unlikely 2 

Risk Identified 11-Feb-2020 Risk Assessed 01-Oct-2022 Target Date 31-Mar-2023 

Risk Movement since last 
assessment  

Constant Risk History 
 

Potential actions for improvement – Half-year update 

The terms of reference of the Climate Action Board have been revised to better reflect the climate emergency.  
The Go Neutral review of assets and Go Neutral Framework should assist in the identification and delivery of council 
sites for renewable generation. The Salford Local Area Energy Plan should assist in long term energy planning in the 
City.   

P
age 21



10 

and communities most at risk within the city. The response to major 
incidents can include opening rest centres to accept those displaced 
by flooding and assisting with the recovery phase.  
The emerging approach to retrofit should reduce the risk of excess 
summer and winter deaths in the event of extreme weather events.  
Following the declaration of a climate emergency by Salford City 
Council in 2019 the council introduced a Climate Action Board which 
reviews the council’s climate change action plan. This is now being 
supplemented by sub-groups which will focus on difficult challenges. 
The level of home retrofit required to meet the target in the 5 Year 
Environment plan are extremely challenging.  
The roll out of Carbon Literacy Training to staff will assist in the 
identification of climate change risks and opportunities at an 
individual, team and service level.   

 

P
age 22



11 

SCCSRR.006 Business interruptions and emergency incidents 
Risk Owner: 
Assigned to: 

John Searle 
Jeanette Staley 

Business continuity risk - Should an emergency or major incident occur, there is a risk that the council may not be able to deliver key services as a result - loss of staff/loss of buildings/loss of IT 
infrastructure/loss of power due to unplanned interruption.  
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic there is a potential risk that the council may not be able to maintain delivery of council services / vibrancy of the city.   

Existing Controls 

The Council has a statutory requirement under Civil Contingencies Act to maintain a risk register on emergencies, with a pandemic being one of those risks. Responsibility sits at a Greater 
Manchester level, and the risk register can be found on the GM prepared website. This sets out mitigation plans that are in place.  
A Salford Emergency Response and Recovery Plan is  also in place. The Plan is regularly exercised through various scenario planning and desk top multi-agency exercises. Governance is in 
place - GOLD via a Salford Strategic Coordination Group, SILVER via Local Resilience Forum and BRONZE through Business Continuity Champions.  
On call is in place via a weekly on call system of bronze, silver, gold officers.  
Business Continuity - The council has a business continuity corporate plan, as well as directorate/service-based business continuity champions, business impact analysis and business 
continuity plans. BIAs (Business Impact Assessments) have been completed and Business Continuity plans have been written. A test of our Business Continuity arrangements will be run.  
Brexit - The council has conducted a Brexit impact assessment and a Brexit mitigation plan. During the no deal period the council was running 2 weekly Brexit meetings with business continuity 
champions, where we would review and update our plans in line with current government guidance/changes. The Brexit plan is being kept up to date, continue to share government guidelines 
across the council and continue to meet as a Brexit group quarterly.  
COVID-19 – the council has a full command and control structure to manage the ongoing COVID-19 Pandemic and mitigate as far as possible the effects on Salford's residents, businesses and 
communities.   

Existing Controls - Assurances 

For the actions we would take in the event of a business interruption incident, please refer to the corporate business continuity plan and the directorate business continuity plan relevant to the 
incident. For the actions we would take in the event of Brexit affecting SCC (Salford City Council) or the wider City, please refer to the actions contained within the Brexit plan and/or the SCC 
emergency response and recovery plan. For the actions we would / are taking in relation to COVID-19 please refer to the COVID-19 Outbreak Management Control Plan and the Recovery Co-
ordinating Group Recovery Plan. For the actions we would take in relation to an Emergency Incident please refer to our emergency response and recovery plan.  
Our emergency planning and business continuity plans are regularly tested (whether that be through exercising or through live incidents). Any learning we gain from these are debriefed and put 
back into plans retrospectively.   

Gaps in Existing Controls 

  

Original Risk 12 Current Risk 16 Target Risk 4 Latest Update 13 Oct 2022 

   

Next Assessment 01 Jan 2023 

Risk Treatment Plan 

Major 4 Major 4 Significant 2 The Salford COVID 19 emergency structures have been stood down 
but monitoring of statistics and surveillance of issues continues via the 
emergency planning and business continuity leads. Both the broader 
Business Continuity Champions and Local Resilience Forums 
continue to meet to discuss and respond to the COVID emergency as 
well as other resilience issues. Likewise, the Neighbourhood 

Likely 3 Very Likely 4 Unlikely 2 

Risk Identified 11-Feb-2020 Risk Assessed 01-Oct-2022 Target Date 31-Mar-2023 

Risk Movement since last 
assessment  

Constant Risk History 
 

P
age 23



12 

Potential actions for improvement – Half-year update Resilience Forums are still in place and meeting regularly. The 
structures ensure we are intelligence led in relation to dealing with 
emergencies and are flexible enough to respond as quickly as 
required.   

Recent examples of work include counter terrorism training and exercising, a mass power outage exercise. Surveillance 
in relation to other risks such as Brexit, cost of living crisis is on-going. The hospital mortuary continues to struggle for 
capacity, although we are currently having a watching brief. It is likely the mortality planning group will be stood back up 
to progress actions to ease the situation as we head into winter. The London Bridge Protocol was activated in Salford and 
implemented well. We have debriefed this emergency and the learning will be put back into the protocol should we need 
to activate it again.   

 

P
age 24



13 

SCCSRR.007 Effective governance and decision making 
Risk Owner: 
Assigned to: 

Debbie Brown 
Joanne Hardman; Iolanda Puzio 

If we do not have and operate an effective and agile governance framework coupled with strong strategic and political leadership, then we will be unable to ensure we have appropriate decision- 
making arrangements in place which would affect our ability to meet statutory requirements to make decisions in a proportionate, transparent and lawful way.  
Failure to meet these fundamental principles of good corporate governance at the Council or indirectly through a range of delivery models and partnership working leads to loss of public and 
business confidence in the organisation, reputational or financial loss and a diminution in our ability to operate as an effective and respected public authority and leader of place.   

Existing Controls 

There are a range of active and complementary controls in place. The Constitution of the Council is  the bedrock of good governance. It is kept under review by the Monitoring Officer and it is 
updated at least annually to ensure it continues to be relevant to the needs of the Council. In addition there are quarterly or more frequent meetings of the Governance Group whose primary 
responsibility is to prepare and have the oversight of delivery of the Annual Governance Framework and improvement plan.  
More broadly, the Council has in place a Code of Corporate Governance which is approved annually by the Audit Committee following engagement with the Council’s Corporate Management 
Team (CMT), the City Mayor and the Cabinet so that there is senior accountability and ownership. The same process is followed annually for the Annual Governance Statement, which is a 
documented assessment of how the Code is being operated at the Council. The Council has robust arrangements for executive decision-making, which are embedded and communicated. Items 
for decision are developed and challenged in an appropriate way with input from professionally qualified officers and CMT where necessary as well as lead member input. Delegated executive 
decisions are carried out through a mature scheme of delegation and decisions are taken and published in a transparent way. The scheme of delegation is contained in the Constitution and 
understood by members and officers. Operation of the scheme is overseen by the Committee Services Team.  
The Council has well-established arrangements for scrutiny which are member-led and supported strongly by officers. The O and S Committee and the Panels have agreed annual work 
programmes and as well as making recommendations to the City Mayor and the Council’s CMT on service improvement and executive decision-making throughout the year, they produce an 
annual report to Council summarising activity and impact of scrutiny activity in the previous year. The Audit Committee is chaired by a member of the opposition which is in line with CIPFA good 
governance practice. Independent assurance of the Council’s arrangements is provided by internal auditors, external auditors and external regulatory oversight for example Ofsted and Care 
Quality Commission. There are established arrangements and Codes of Conduct for officers and members which are widely communicated and followed. Annual learning and development on the 
code of conduct takes place for new members as well as existing members of the council. Member development is overseen by a member working group who contribute to and sign off an annual 
member development programme. The Council delivers some of its activities through partnerships with the public and private sector as well as through Council-controlled corporate vehicles. 
These are documented appropriately and are supported directly or indirectly by senior officers of the Council and elected members.   

Existing Controls - Assurances 

The Constitution of the Council, Schemes of Delegation and the publication of decisions, forward plan of key decisions, compliance with the data publication regime, Code of Corporate 
Governance, Corporate Governance Group, Annual Governance Statement, Codes of Conduct, Standards Committee chaired by an Independent Member, Audit Committee, Scrutiny Committee 
and Panels, Member and Officer learning and development, Register of Interests, Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policy, Whistleblowing Policy, Disciplinary Procedures, Annual Report of the Standards 
Committee, risk control framework, registers and reporting arrangements, Internal and External Audit.   

Gaps in Existing Controls 

Further assurance is needed that the delivery of the Council’s functions through alternative vehicles and through partners is scrutinised appropriately and that there are the necessary transparency 
and accountabilities in place. There is scope to expand the remit of the Governance Group so it has a more holistic view of the governance landscape at the Council.   

Original Risk 12 Current Risk 8 Target Risk 8 Latest Update 18 Oct 2022 

   

Next Assessment 01 Jan 2023 

Risk Treatment Plan 

Major 4 Major 4 Major 4 This risk is being tolerated at its current risk rating (8) which is in line 
with the target set. However, the risk is not being closed so we can keep 

Likely 3 Unlikely 2 Unlikely 2 

P
age 25



14 

Risk Identified 12-May-2021 Risk Assessed 01-Oct-2022 Target Date 31-Mar-2022 continued focus and visibility   

Risk Movement since last 
assessment  

Constant Risk History 
 

Potential actions for improvement – Half-year update 

The Local Government Association Peer Review carried out at the end of 2021 highlighted some areas of governance 
that could benefit from review including the offer scheme of delegation and the scrutiny function. The review also 
highlighted the need to consider succession planning both for officers and members. 
Further assurance is needed that the delivery of the Council’s functions through alternative vehicles and through partners 
is scrutinised appropriately and that there are the necessary transparency and accountabilities in place.  

 

P
age 26



15 

 SCCSRR.008 Ukraine support plans 
Risk Owner: 
Assigned to: 

Charlotte Ramsden 
Janice  Lowndes 

The Council is stepping up humanitarian, welfare, housing and financial support for Ukrainian and host families as a result of current war in Ukraine, and under the auspices of the Government's 
Home for Ukraine, family reunion and refugee support programmes.  
If the council does not ensure effective safeguarding, welfare and financial checks are in place there is a risk of personal harm, fraud, increased housing demands and reputational damage, for 
those seeking sanctuary, for host families, and to the city council.   

Existing Controls 

 Overall plan and oversight: A cross-office squad has been brought together, led by the AD (Assistant Director) People and Communities. This will ensure coordination of internal resources, 
and a clear project management focus. Risks and issues can be immediately escalated directly to the Strategic Director People, and to Corporate Management Team. A regular weekly 
update to CMT (Corporate Management Team) will be provided whilst the programme is being developed, tapering off once initial support plans are in place. Sub-risk owner; Janice 
Lowndes.  

 Safeguarding: it is crucial that the safety of both Ukrainian and host families is protected and in particular the safety of children and vulnerable adults. DBS checks will be requested as soon 
as practical for all host families to include all living in the property over 18 years, and identity checks confirmed with Home Office (via national data base) for those arriving in the city. An 
initial welfare visit will be undertaken by SCC (Salford City Council) Welfare Team once the families arrive and will be repeated as necessary. An initial assessment on the need for further 
support will be undertaken at the first visit. Sub-risk owner: Janice Lowndes / Zoe Fearon.  

 Fraud: SCC’s universal council tax / business support team have agreed to support payment of the £350.00 household support grant to host families. The team are experienced at 
managing a large volume of financial grants, including the various household, personal and business grants introduced during COVID. Robust fraud prevention measures and identity 
checks are in place. AD Digital and Customer Services has access to the national data base and will be able to support with reconciliation of local and national household records. Sub-risk 
owner: Steven Fry.  

 Inappropriate accommodation: to ensure that host accommodation is safe, adequate, and meets ‘decency’ standards a hous ing inspection will be undertaken by the Council's Private Sector 
/ Landlord Licensing Teams as soon as the addresses are released on the national data system following registering for the scheme, and before arrival of the Ukrainian family if this is 
possible. Sub-risk owner: John Wooderson.  

 Housing: Homes for Ukraine Scheme involves sponsors providing accommodation to Ukraine families for a minimum of 6 months, during this time there is a potential risk of relationship 
breakdown which may require SCC to provide temporary accommodation and/or settled accommodation. The family scheme, not funded, also carries a risk of relationship break down or 
overcrowding increasing the requirement for housing. Access to housing is very limited in Salford. Housing Services will secure a manageable amount of accommodation. Breakdowns in 
accommodation will be escalated to national team. Sub-risk owner: Janice Lowndes.  

 Hate crime / cohesion: there is widespread public support for the Ukrainian support schemes, and no cohesion risks are identified. GMP and SCC community safety have robust hate crime 
and cohesion monitoring and reporting arrangements in place, and these will be routinely updated via Neighbourhood Managers and CSRTs. Any issues will be immediately escalated via 
existing reporting routes. Sub-risk owner: Jeanette Staley.  

 Duplication of effort leading to poor coordination: there is widespread support for the Ukrainian relief and support effort, all of which is being brought together rapidly, and with little planning 
time. SCC (with other GM Authorities) has also provided funding support to Europia for targeted community development work to support these efforts. Coordination will be key. A 
partnership working group is in place, led by AD People and Communities. Sub-risk owner: Janice Lowndes.  

 Sufficiency of local services: Ukrainian families and children will, in all likelihood have experienced significant trauma. Families will require access to health services, children will require 
access to local schools and nurseries, as well as other essential support. Some local services – such as schools – are already stretched. There may be capacity issues depending on the 
eventual location (property/postcode) for families. SCC wil l need to liaise with Clinical Commissioning Group and schools to ensure access to services. Sub-risk owner: Muna Abdel-Aziz 
(PC) and Cathy Starbuck (schools).  

 New burdens: coordinating this support is an additional burden on council staff and financial resources. It is imperative this additionality is fully acknowledged via New Burdens funding from 
Government. Staffing capacity – within the council, across schools and the health service - to deliver on the range of support required is already limited, and will likely be insufficient without 
additional resources, for example the processing of DBS checks is an immediate issue. Sub-risk owner: Joanne Hardman.  

 Information security: SCC has access to the national database which records address of host families  in Salford, with the details of Ukrainian families they have been matched to. This is 
data shared by central govt for the sole purpose of administering the Ukraine support programmes. It cannot be used for other purposes. This is information SCC does not hold otherwise 
and is a new set of personal data. There is a risk that given urgency and expediency personal data could be inadvertently shared or used for a purpose other than intended. This risk is low 
given the existing information security protocols in place. Consideration should be given to a specific DPIA / Privacy notice. Sub-risk owner: Janice Lowndes / Debbie McCarron.  

  

P
age 27



16 

 Unknown refugees: people are arriving in the country via 3 main routes, Homes for Ukraine, Family Scheme and independently. SCC is only provided information on and funding for the 
Ukrainian refugees through the Homes for Ukraine, this means that the number of people living in Salford is unknown. Access to services is greater than SCC is aware of. The risk is high 
as the number of people is unknown and access for services could be high due unidentified needs of the refugees. Access to alternative data, i.e. through the Job Centre and housing 
services to be collected. Sub risk owner: Janice Lowndes. 

 Unaccompanied Minors Scheme: this scheme is open to support children from Ukraine to stay with known families/individuals with parental consent. Approval for the arrival of the children 
and placement with hosts is dependent on all safety checks being completed and application of the private fostering process. The applications for the scheme will be managed via the 
Bridge and through the Private Fostering process. Sub-risk owner: Zoe Fearon.   

Existing Controls - Assurances 

Regular reports to Corporate Management Team on overall progress, highlighting key barriers and risks.   

Gaps in Existing Controls 

Business as usual monitoring arrangements will need to be developed once the support programmes are in place.   

Original Risk 12 Current Risk 12 Target Risk 8 Latest Update 11 Aug 2022 

   

Next Assessment 01 Jan 2023 

Risk Treatment Plan 

Major 4 Major 4 Major 4 A steering group is in place to oversee and manage the scheme. A 
safeguarding group has been established to manage and complete 
additional safeguarding checks. Weekly meetings are in place.  
The Unaccompanied Minors  Scheme is managed through the Bridge 
and the private fostering processes.  
The addition of the Unaccompanied Minors scheme to the Homes for 
Ukraine Scheme maintains the risk at the original likelihood and 
impact scores.   

Likely 3 Likely 3 Unlikely 2 

Risk Identified 01-Apr-2022 Risk Assessed 01-Oct-2022 Target Date 31-Mar-2023 

Risk Movement since last 
assessment  

Constant Risk History 
 

Potential actions for improvement – Half-year update 

Continued risk included in the Strategic Risk Register as requested by Tom Stannard and Charlotte Ramsden. A project 
steering group is in place with accountability and reporting direct to Corporate Management Team, with immediate 
escalation of issues and risks where necessary.  
Additional group will be developed to manage the Unaccompanied Minors Scheme via the Bridge and private fostering.   

 

P
age 28



17 

SCCSRR.009 Impact of Cost-of-Living crisis on people living and working in Salford 

Risk Owner: 
Assigned to: 

 

Debbie Brown 
Joanne Hardman; Janice  
Lowndes; Jacquie Russell 

As the cost-of-living crisis impacts on communities in Salford, more people will face financial difficulties which will lead to an increased demand for council services and assistance. This will 
have both financial implications for the council and place further pressures on delivery of services provided by the council e.g. Salford Assist, WRADAS, housing options/temporary 
accommodation etc.   

Existing Controls 

Provision of services/schemes to support people to access financial assistance/advice, including Welfare Rights, Debt Advice, Salford Assist, Household Support Fund, Discretionary Housing 
scheme, Housing Benefits and Council Tax discretionary schemes.  
Regular budget report monitoring financial/budget position.   

Existing Controls - Assurances 

Individual service monitoring, GM cost of living data reports.   

Gaps in Existing Controls 

Department of Work and Pensions current funding for Household support fund ends on 30 September 2022, a new allocation of the scheme for October 2022 to April 2023 approved but 
allocation not confirmed. We will need to closely monitor demand for services in relation to budget implications as the number of residents requiring support is unlikely to decrease due to the 
impact of the cost of living increases in relation to food and fuel particularly through the winter months but also in future years.  
Housing rent increases to be agreed by the registered providers, impact directly on people’s ability to manage and increased risk of becoming homeless, needing access to temporary 
accommodation or rough sleeping. This would increase pressure on overstretched housing teams in prevention and intervention services and create further financial pressure on the council 
budgets.   

Original Risk 16 Current Risk 16 Target Risk 12 Latest Update 18 Oct 2022 

   

Next Assessment 01 Jan 2023 

Risk Treatment Plan 

Major 4 Major 4 Serious  3 Establish a strategic approach to tackling the impacts of financial 
crisis through City Leaders. Meeting to agree the objectives in 
October 2022.  
Establishing a Cost-of-Living Plan, identifying all existing resources 
and support services that can provide help to people experiencing 
financial crisis.  
Review are internal processes to poverty proof actions.  
Identify funding that can be used to enhance the discretionary funding.  
Increase the level of support in homelessness prevention to reduce 
the number of people needing temporary accommodation or rough 
sleeping. Support financially vulnerable people, through an 
established ‘team around the family’ to ensure all resources are 
maximised to reduce impact of financial crisis.   

Very Likely 4 Very Likely 4 Very Likely 4 

Risk Identified 01-Oct-2022 Risk Assessed 01-Oct-2022 Target Date 31-Mar-2023 

Risk Movement since last 
assessment  

Constant Risk History 
 

Potential actions for improvement – Half-year update 

Budget projections continue to include discretionary funding for our most vulnerable residents, with £10.3m support 
through the council tax funding scheme along with a further £1.5m of support through a range of schemes including 
Salford Assist, discretionary housing payments, council tax support and warm homes investment fund. There has also 
been a further £2.7m of government funding available for this first half of 2022/23 through the housing support fund which 
has been confirmed as being extended to the end of the year.   
The Council developed and implemented an Employee Support Loan Scheme for staff which was launched in July 2022 
with over 800 applications received to date and £368,000 paid with recovery through payroll commencing at the point the 

P
age 29



18 

national pay award is agreed and implemented. 
The Council continues to develop its Financial Wellbeing offer for staff including financial help and information and our 
Employee Assistance Programme and benefits provision through Vivup which includes discounts, offers and salary 
sacrifice schemes. 
Further work will be undertaken through the second part of the year to ensure that the staff support is linked to the 
external / resident support available through Better Off etc. 

 

P
age 30



1 

 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 
or 

Part 2: Closed to the Public – Item No. 

 
 

REPORT OF: Assistant Director, Strategy and Performance 

 
 

TO: Audit and Accounts Committee 
 

ON: 25 January 2023

 
 

TITLE: Half-year 2022-23 Strategic Risk Register update 

 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 

It is recommended that Audit and Accounts Committee Members: 
 

a) Note the contents of the half-year 2022/23 Strategic Risk Register 
update attached at Appendix 1. 

 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
 

Risk Management in Salford City Council is about improving our ability to deliver 

outcomes for the community by managing our threats, enhancing our opportunities 
and creating an environment that adds value to ongoing activities. 
 

The Report attached at Appendix 1 provides Audit and Accounts Committee 
members with a half-year update of the current strategic risks to the delivery of 

Salford’s priorities. These are monitored through Corporate Management Team 
(CMT) and Cabinet Briefing. 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

Salford City Council Risk Management Strategy and Process 
2022-23 Strategic Risk Register  

 
KEY DECISION: YES / NO 

 
 

DETAILS: 
 

1. Background 
 

1.1 Risk management is both a statutory requirement and an 

important part of planning for organisations. 
 

Page 31



2 

 

1.2 Risk Management in Salford City Council is about improving our 
ability to deliver outcomes for the community by managing our 
threats, enhancing our opportunities and creating an environment 

that adds value to ongoing activities. By effectively managing our 
risks and opportunities, which is all part of good governance, we 

will be in a stronger position to deliver our objectives, provide 
improved services to the public and achieve value for money. 

 
2. Risk Management Update  

 

2.1       Since 2001, the council has had a Risk Management Strategy and 
Process in place that describes our approach to risk management 
in Salford.   

 
2.2       To make sure that our approach to risk management remains 

robust and current it is considered good practice to periodically 
review our Strategy and Process. These arrangements were last 
reviewed in 2021. In accordance with our Strategy, our 

arrangements in the Risk Management Strategy and Process will 
be reviewed and refreshed again in Spring 2023. 

 
3. 2022-23 Strategic Risk Register  

 

3.1. It is good governance for the Council to maintain and review a 
register of its strategic risks. Strategic risks are those key, cross 

cutting issues that affect the governance, legal, financial or 
reputational interests of the Council. Operational or service specific 
risks are captured within Service Group Risk Registers in 2022-23 

Service Group Business Plans.   
 

3.2. Alongside the business planning process in 2022 CMT developed 
the council’s 2022-2023 Strategic Risk Register. All risks included in 
Risk Registers are identified in line with the council’s Risk 

Management Strategy and are aligned to the council’s priorities – 
The Great Eight.   

 
3.3. Summary of Risk Scores currently in Strategic Risk Register 

 

 

   3 

  1 4 

   1 

    

 

  

3.4. As at the half-year point of 2022-23 (30 September 2022), there are 
9 risks in the council’s Strategic Risk Register.  Of these 9 risks, 7 
have a risk score between 12 and 16 (RAG rated as High, Red).  

Likelihood 

  
  
  

  
  

 I
m

p
a
c
t 

Page 32



3 

 

The remaining 2 risks have a score between 6 and 12 (RAG rated 
as Medium, Amber). These 9 strategic risks, are listed below: - 

 Inability to deliver minimum service levels/statutory service levels 

as a result of a business interruption/emergency incident (16). 

 Cyber security (16). 

 Impact of Cost-of-Living crisis on people living and working in  
     Salford (16) 

 Financial resilience (12). 

 Stability and capacity of workforce and maintaining a strong 

organisational culture (12). 

 Infectious disease outbreaks (including Coronavirus) (12). 

 Ukraine support plans (12). 

 Impact of climate change (9).  

 Effective governance and decision making (8). 

 
3.5. An update on all the risks contained in the council’s Strategic Risk 

Register is attached at Appendix 1. 
 

3.6. Changes to the Strategic Risk Register 

 
During the first half of 2022-23 no risks were removed from the 

Strategic Risk Register but two additional risks have been added.  
In April 2022 an additional risk was added in relation to the 
Council’s humanitarian, welfare, housing and financial support for 

Ukrainian and host families as a result of the current war in Ukraine. 
This risk was given a risk score of 12 (High red RAG rating).  

 
In September 2022 a new risk was added in relation to the cost-of-
living crisis and the impact it is having on communities in Salford.  

Due to the significant impact this may have on our communities this 
risk was given the highest risk score of 16 (Red RAG rating). 

 
4. Review of Strategic Risk Register  

 

4.1. The 2023-24 business planning process is currently underway and 
Service Groups are currently developing their Business Plans and 

Service Group Risk Registers.  Alongside this process CMT will be 
reviewing and refreshing the council’s Strategic Risk Register. By 
the end of April 2023 business plans will have been finalised and 

this review will have taken place, following which the revised 
Register will be presented to Audit and Accounts Committee. 

 
5. Recommendations 

 

It is recommended that Audit and Accounts Committee Members: 
 

a) Note the contents of the Half-year 2022/23 Strategic Risk Register 
update attached at Appendix 1. 

 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Risk Management Strategy and Process 

      2022-23 Service Group Business Plans 

Page 33



4 

 

  Corporate Performance Framework       

 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

The risks contained in the register relate to many areas of Council risk. Where an 
equality risk has been identified it will be highlighted in the update report. 

 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  

This is contained in the Risk Register attached. 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  

Risk Management is a statutory requirement and a key part of the Council’s 
corporate governance.

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

Risk Management is aligned to the council’s financial planning process. Risk 

management processes are considered within existing budgets to manage the risk or 
contingency plans can be implemented should any risks be triggered.

 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

Risk management is aligned to the council’s procurement processes. 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

Risk Management is aligned to the council’s HR policies and processes. 

 
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: 

The impact of climate change is integral to the council’s risk management approach.  
The Council has also introduced a Climate Change Board which reviewed the 
council’s Climate Change Action Plan and this is also supplemented by subgroups 

which will focus on difficult challenges. 

 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

All Service Groups have been consulted. 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Jacquie Russell, Assistant Director, Strategy and 

Performance  
TEL NO:    0161 793 3558 

 
WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  ALL 

 
 

 
 

Page 34



 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 

 

REPORT OF THE 

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER & HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

 

TO THE AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 

ON WEDNESDAY 25th JANUARY 2023 

 

TITLE: Internal Audit Progress Report (Nov 2022 – Jan 2023) 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Members are requested to consider the contents of the 

report. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the 

resources utilised by Internal Audit during 2022/23, the activities undertaken in the 
reporting period, and the status of work currently being undertaken. 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  

 Audit & Accounts Committee reports  

 Internal Audit’s management information systems 

 

KEY DECISION: No 

 

DETAILS: See appended report. 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: N/A 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  N/A 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 9



 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Internal audit projects are managed within the Unit’s risk-

based audit protocols aimed at giving assurance regarding the management of the 
City Council’s key business risks. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: 

Supplied by: Melinda Edwards, Principal Solicitor  

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires every local authority to make 

arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs and to secure that 
one of their officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs. The 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 also require authorities to ensure that they 

have a sound system of internal control which: 

a) facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the achievement of its aims 

and objectives; 
b) ensures that the financial and operational management of the authority is 

effective; and 

c) includes effective arrangements for the management of risk. 

A relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the 

effectiveness of its risk management control and governance processes, taking into 
account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance. 

In that regard, the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (CIPFA/IIA) requires an 

authority’s chief audit executive to develop and maintain a quality assurance and 
improvement programme that covers all aspects of the internal audit activity. The 

quality assurance and improvement programme must include both internal and 
external assessments. Internal assessments include the ongoing monitoring of the 
performance of the internal audit activity.  

The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the resources utilised by Internal 
Audit, the activities undertaken in the reporting period, and the status of work 

currently being undertaken.  

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  

Supplied by: Tony Thompstone, Strategic Finance Manager  

The audit plan is funded from within the revenue budget and there are no additional 
financial demands resulting from this report.

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Christine Flisk, Procurement 

Manager  

There are no known procurement implications with this report. 

 

  

Page 36



 

HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Laura Coluccio, Strategic HR Manager 

There are no known HR implications arising from this report. 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: None 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: David Smith, Deputy Head of Internal Audit 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: N/A 

  

Page 37



Internal Audit Progress Report  
October 2022 

Page 1 
 

INTRODUCTION 

This report provides Members of the Audit & Accounts Committee with details of the 
resources utilised by Internal Audit and outcomes, including work reported in this period, 

work currently being undertaken and new work commenced. 

AUDITS COMPLETED AND REPORTS ISSUED 

Table 1 below summarises four audits that have been finalised since the last progress 

report to Audit and Accounts Committee, and the corresponding number of agreed actions 
and overall level of assurance provided for each of those audits.  

Summary Reports have been provided to Committee Members for each of these reviews.  

Table 1: Reports Issued  

Audit  
Number of agreed actions and priority Level of 

Assurance  Critical High Medium Low Total 

Fiddlers Lane Primary School - - 14 - 14 Satisfactory 

Key Decisions - - 4 - 4 Satisfactory 

Benefits Service Compliance with 
BPSS 

- - 5 - 5 Satisfactory 

Holy Family Primary School - - 7 5 12 Limited 

Total:  - - 30 5 35  

Guidance notes: 

 Any level of assurance given to each audit is a balanced judgement based upon the 
established system of controls, the subject’s approach to risk management, and the 

nature of any recommendations and actions agreed. See Table 3 at the back of this 
report for explanations of the different levels of assurance. 

 Actions are classified over the categories of critical, high, medium, and low. See Table 

4 at the back of this report for explanations of the different levels of priority.  

 The agreed actions are designed to improve the control environment and/or improve 
‘value for money’ within the client’s area of responsibility and we can report that the 

actions made in this period have been agreed by management. 

 Our audit reports include an action plan that records the detail of our findings, the 

agreed action that management intend to take in response to these findings and the 
timescale to undertake such action. This provides a record that progress can be 
measured against when we undertake our Post Implementation Reviews or follow-up 

work.  

POST IMPLEMENTATION REVIEW 

Internal Audit undertakes Post Implementation Reviews (PIRs) of services or systems that 
have been subject to an audit and received a ‘Limited’ level of assurance, or when 
specifically requested by leadership. 

Page 38



Internal Audit Progress Report  
October 2022 

Page 2 
 

We have included information below summarising the PIR that has been finalised in this 
period.  

The information includes the number of agreed actions and the number of those actions 

now implemented or outstanding. It also provides an indication of the direction of travel 
regarding the overall level of assurance.   

More detailed Committee Summary reports have been provided to Committee Members for 
each of these ahead of this meeting.  
 

Wharton Primary School (2nd PIR) 

Actions 
Priority Direction of Travel 

Critical High Medium Low Total Audit Indicative 

Agreed  0  6  7  0  13  

Limited Satisfactory 
Implemented  0  2  6  0  8  

Nearing Completion  0  2  1  0  3  

Work in Progress  0  2  0  0  2  

Guidance notes: 

 The timing of a PIR is determined by the agreed implementation dates, detailed within 

the original audit report, and is generally undertaken within six months of the audit. 

 PIRs only confirm the action taken to resolve the issues highlighted within our report 
and do not check that the rest of the control framework remains as robust as it was at 

the time of our original review. 

 The PIR can take the form of an actual site visit by Internal Audit to verify the 
implementation of agreed recommendations or alternative follow-up, for example the 

client undertaking a self-assessment of implemented recommendations and reporting 
their outcomes to Internal Audit. 

 The summaries include an indicative assurance ‘direction of travel’ following the Post 

Implementation Review. This provides a measure of the value added through the 
implementation of the agreed actions within our reports. It shows the level of 
assurance that we may expect we would now be able to provide if we undertook a full 

audit again. It takes into account the action taken to address matters raised in our 
original report. However, it should be noted that this is indicative only and may not 

reflect the actual current position. 

OTHER WORK 

This section details other work completed by the audit team during the period. 

Assurance Work (Reporting)  

Work on the audit plan is noted in Table 2 at the back of this report. Draft reports have 
been issued or are being prepared in the following areas: 

 Meeting Demand & Service Resilience - Salford Assist 

 Fixed Assets (Financial Reporting) 

Page 39



Internal Audit Progress Report  
October 2022 

Page 3 
 

 Meeting Demand & Service Resilience - WRADAS 

 WRADAS PIR 

Planning for 2023/24 

Our annual planning activity has commenced. We are spending time with each Assistant 
Director to refresh update our understanding of their portfolios, key strategic and 

operational risks, and the existing assurance (4 lines of defence) around those risks and 
the services they lead. This work will help prioritise audits for 2023/34, subject to further 
consultation with each directorates’ leadership team.  

Grant Certification  

We have provided assurance that the following grants have be used in accordance with 
the respective awarding bodies’ requirements: 

 Transport Capital Block and Pothole Grant Certification  

Covid-19 Business Grants and Energy Rebate Payments 

Post payment assurance work continues to be undertaken in response to the Government 
Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy (BEIS) requirements. Assurance 

exercises and returns have been completed. We continue to support efforts to recover any 
grants paid any businesses paid in error or frauds.   

Pre-payment assurance work continued on payments made to residents as part of the 
Government’s Energy Rebate scheme. The original scheme concluded in November, 

however, a new scheme of support to households not in receipt of payments/reductions 
direct via their energy providers as part of the Government’s Energy Bill Relief Scheme, is 

due to commence in January 2023. 

Information Governance and Data / Digital  

We provide ongoing assurance and consultative support to the council’s continued 

compliance with the requirements of ISO 27001. 

Supporting Squads, Transformation, Projects, and Change 

Internal Audit is currently involved in ‘squads’ supporting: 

 Procurement Governance Squad: providing consultancy advice 

 Ad hoc assurance and consultitive support to the project Innovate workstreams 

Resources 

 Following our recent recruitment exercise, two Internal Auditors joined the team in 

October, returning the team to its normal resource level 

 Sickness levels have remained negligible with no discernible impact on the Team’s 
performance 

  

Page 40



Internal Audit Progress Report  
October 2022 

Page 4 
 

Collaboration 

 We have ongoing practitioner representation on sub groups of the North West Heads of 
Internal Audit Groups, the groups have been established to share good practice in 

audit across the region: 

o Contract Audit Group 

o IT Audit Group (chair) 

o Schools Audit Group (chair) 

o Fraud Group 

 The Deputy Head of Internal Audit is a member of CIPFA North West’s Audit, Risk and 
Governance Group. The group discusses developments within the profession and 
relevent changes in the public sector, and organises training and development events 

for public sector auditors within the region.  

 The Head of Internal Audit attends the North West Chief Audit Executive Group 

meetings, is a member of the Local Authority Chief Auditors Network, and chairs the 
Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally Operational Group. This enables the 
identification and sharing of best practice nationally in respect of internal audit and 

counter fraud. 

Corporate Counter Fraud & Investigations 

The team continues to be available to support the business with internal investigations, 

providing technical skills and advice when called upon and managing the whistleblowing 
hotline / online referrals.  

The following table has been updated to provide a more complete overview of allegations 

and other contacts through the council’s counter-fraud webpage, referral hot line, or direct 
contact, for the financial year-to-date. 

Type of Referral (Allegation or Contact) Cumulative to January 

Investigation - Counter Fraud Team   16 

Investigation - Support to HR 0 

Investigation - Internal Audit 3 * 

Investigation - Service / Manager 3 

NFA - Insufficient Info. 4 

NFA - No concerns 7 

NFA - Service Matter 4 

Referred - Council Department 22 

Referred - DWP 4 

Other - See Notes 4 

Total:   67 

*_Two investigations are ongoing. Outcomes and any lessons learned will be reported in due course. 

  

Page 41



Internal Audit Progress Report  
October 2022 

Page 5 
 

Guidance notes: 

 Whilst the above matters have either been referred to Internal Audit or Internal Audit 
advice sought, not all fall within the definition of “whistle blowing” or necessarily relate 

to fraud, bribery or corruption, and no indication of the outcome of our enquiries is 
implied.  

 Internal refers to workforce matters. External refers to members of the public, for 

example, single person discount fraud.  

 

Page 42



Internal Audit Progress Report  
October 2022 

Page 6 
 

Table 2: Audit Plan 2022/23 

Audit / Activity Timing TOR  Reported Assurance Comments 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & RISK      

Governance Arrangements / AGS ongoing n/a n/a n/a  

Risk Management and Assurance Framework ongoing n/a n/a n/a  

Information Governance ongoing n/a n/a n/a  

Transformation, Change & Squads Support  ongoing n/a n/a n/a Ah hoc support as/when requested 

SERVICE REFORM (General)      

Gifts & Hospitality (bf) Q1 06/10/21 13/06/22 Limited  

Business Interests (bf)  Q1 06/10/21 13/06/22 Limited  

Key Decisions (bf) Q2 20/05/22 16/11/22 Satisfactory   

Benefits Service (Compliance with Baseline Personnel 
Security Standard) 

Q2 17/08/22 13/12/22 Satisfactory  

Contract Management Ongoing n/a n/a n/a Ah hoc support and advice   

Council Constitution Ongoing n/a n/a n/a Consultative Support 

PIR Corporate Complaints Q3 TBC TBC TBC Planning   

Modern Slavery (bf) Q3/Q4 TBC TBC TBC Planning   

Statutory Returns - Data Integrity & Resources (bf) Q3/Q4 n/a n/a n/a On hold until 2023/24 

Peer Review – SCC Response Q4     

CCG Replacement - Joint Business Planning 

Processes 
Q4     

SERVICE REFORM (Grants & Compliance Work) 

Pre and Post Payment Assurance – Covid-19 
Business Grants and Energy Rebate Scheme 

Ongoing n/a n/a n/a Fieldwork underway 

Greaves Trust 2020/21 Q1/2  n/a 30/06/22 Validated   

P
age 43



Internal Audit Progress Report  
October 2022 

Page 7 
 

Audit / Activity Timing TOR  Reported Assurance Comments 

Greaves Trust 2021/22 Q3 n/a Draft Validated Reporting 

Transport Bus Subsidy Grant 2021/22 Q2 n/a 22/06/22 Validated  

Local authority Test and Trace Contain Outbreak 
Management Fund Grant 2021/22 

Q2 n/a 30/06/22 Validated  

Universal Drug Treatment Grant 2021/22 Q2 n/a 26/07/22 Validated  

Adult Weight Management Grant 2021/22 Q2 n/a 01/09/22 Validated  

SCC/SCL Arts Council National Lottery Project Grant 
(Rediscovering Salford) 

Q2 n/a 15/09/22 Validated  

Local Transport Capital Block Funding (Pothole Fund) 
2021/22 

Q2 n/a 13/11/22 Validated  

SERVICE REFORM (Core Financial Systems)      

Treasury Management (bf) Q1 14/03/22 18/07/22 High  

Fixed Assets Q3 08/11/22 Draft TBC Reporting 

Main Accounting System  Q3/Q4     

Budgetary Control  Q3/Q4     

SERVICE REFORM (Information Technology and Digital)    

Data Centre Physical and Environmental Security (bf) Q1 n/a 23/05/22 Satisfactory  

Asset Management (bf) Q1 n/a 05/04/22 Satisfactory  

PCI Compliance Ongoing n/a n/a Pass 
Following the system upgrade, this will not be 

performed internally by ourselves since. 

ISO 27001 Ongoing n/a n/a n/a 
Programme developed in conjunction with the 
governance and IS teams 

SAP Access Control Q4 TBC TBC TBC Terms of reference drafted 

Data Analytics  Ongoing n/a n/a n/a  Assisted Revs and Bens with analysis 
against payroll  

P
age 44



Internal Audit Progress Report  
October 2022 

Page 8 
 

Audit / Activity Timing TOR  Reported Assurance Comments 

 Plans to provide further analysis when the 
NFO data sets are required 

 Plans to develop a continual monitoring 
programme of data analysis 

Disaster Recovery Q4     Awaiting approval to start this work 

Consultancy Support  Ongoing n/a n/a n/a 

 Critical friend on the Change Advisory 

Board 

 Critical friend on the Digital Design 
Authority Board 

 Support for the continued development of 

the HOST 

PLACE      

Derive Q3/Q4 n/a n/a n/a Consultative support to Derive RP 

CCTV Control Room (ISO Compliance) Q1 n/a 07/04/21 Validated   

Incentive Fund - Self Assessment Return to DfT 21/22 Q1 n/a 04/04/22 Validated  

Commercial Estate Management (Rent Reviews) (bf) Q1 20/09/21 28/06/22 Limited  

Land Transactions (bf) Q2 21/03/22 01/09/22 High  

Organising an Event in Salford Q3/Q4 06/12/22 TBC TBC Reactive review   

Catering (Cash Handling) Q3/Q4 TBC TBC TBC Planning 

Section 106 Agreements Q3/Q4     

Climate Emergency (SCC Response) Q3/Q4     

Health & Safety  Q3/Q4     

Major Projects – University & Crescent Programme 
Governance 

Q2/Q3 15/10/21 n/a n/a 

  

 

On hold due to project delays 

 

 

P
age 45



Internal Audit Progress Report  
October 2022 

Page 9 
 

Audit / Activity Timing TOR  Reported Assurance Comments 

PEOPLE (Children & Families)      

Child & Adolescent Mental Health Service Q1 18/10/21 16/09/22 High  

Helping Families (GMCA Troubled Families) inc. Early 
Help 

Q4 TBC TBC TBC GM planning stage, anticipating fieldwork Q4 

Project Imagine n/a n/a n/a n/a Ah hoc support (project now closed) 

Transition   Q3/Q4 TBC TBC TBC Fieldwork 

Children with Disabilities Team (workflow) Q3/Q4     

Special Guardianship Orders (SGOs) Q3/Q4     

Workforce Retention Strategy  Q3/Q4     

PEOPLE (Adults & Public Health)      

Client Charging Policy (bf)  Q1 02/12/21 10/06/22 Satisfactory  

PIR Personal Budgets & Direct Payments (Children & 
Families) 

Q1 n/a 07/06/22 Satisfactory*  

PIR Health Inequalities Q1 n/a 20/06/22 High*  

Meeting Demand & Service Resilience (Post covid-19)  Q1/Q4 29/07/21 TBC TBC 2 workstreams in reporting 

Personal Budgets & Direct Payments (Adults) Q3 06/10/22 TBC TBC Fieldwork underway 

Home Care Q3/Q4 TBC TBC TBC Planning underway and workshop held 

Hospital Discharges Q4     

PEOPLE (Establishments)      

Children’s Homes Q3/Q4 24/11/22 TBC TBC 
Fieldwork underway – each Home will be 
visited and reported separately Dec/Jan. 

Schools Financial Value Standard Q4/Q1 n/a n/a n/a Fieldwork underway for the 2022/23 exercise 

River View Primary School Q1 02/02/22 09/06/22 High  

St Paul’s CE Nevile Road Primary School Q1 08/02/22 21/06/22  High  

P
age 46



Internal Audit Progress Report  
October 2022 

Page 10 
 

Audit / Activity Timing TOR  Reported Assurance Comments 

Godfrey Ermen Memorial CE Primary School Q1 01/02/22 05/04/22 High  

Light Oaks Junior Primary School Q1 16/03/22 26/05/22 Satisfactory  

St Mary’s RC Swinton Primary School Q1 07/04/22 26/05/22 Satisfactory  

Clifton Pupil Referral Unit (The Clifton Centre) Q1 06/06/22 30/06/22  Satisfactory  

St Marks CE Primary Q2 19/05/22 13/10/22 Satisfactory  

PIR1 Wharton Primary Q1 n/a 07/07/22 Limited*   

PIR2 Wharton Primary Q3 n/a 17/11/22 Satisfactory*  

Fiddlers Lane Primary School Q2 26/05/22 20/10/22 Satisfactory  

Holy Family Primary School Q3/Q4 14/06/22 16/11/22 Limited  

All Hallows RC High School Q4 03/07/22 TBC TBC Planning 

Clifton Primary School Q4 03/11/22 TBC TBC Planning 

Cadishead Primary School Q4 08/11/22 TBC TBC Planning 

Beech Street Primary School Q4     

Christ Church CE Patricroft Primary School Q4     

Clarendon Road Primary School Q4     

Holy Cross & All Saints RC Primary School Q4     

The Friars Primary School Q4     

St John’s CE Primary School Q4     

The Canterbury Centre PRU Q4 n/a n/a n/a Cancelled – Academy Order in place 

 *  Indicative level of assurance, based on the progress made since the original audit review 

 (bf)  Work  brought forward from 2021/22 intended to be concluded in 2022-23

P
age 47



Internal Audit Progress Report  
October 2022 

Page 11 
 

Table 3: Levels of Assurance 
 

Level of 

Assurance 

DESIGN: Findings DESIGN: Opinion EFFECTIVENESS: Findings EFFECTIVENESS: Opinion 

High Appropriate procedures and 
controls are in place to 

mitigate the key risks. 

There is a sound system of 
internal control designed to 

achieve objectives. 

No or only minor exception 
found in testing of procedures 

and controls. 

The controls that are in place 
are being consistently 

applied. 

Satisfactory In the main, there are 

appropriate procedures and 
controls in place to mitigate 

the key risks reviewed, albeit 

with some that are not fully 
effective. 

There is generally a sound 

system of internal control 
designed to achieve 

objectives, but with few 

exceptions. 

A small number of exceptions 

found in the testing of 
procedures and controls. 

There is evidence of non-

compliance with some 
controls, which may put 

achievement of some of 

operational objectives at risk. 

Limited 

 

A number of significant gaps 

identified in the procedures 

and controls in key areas. 

The system of internal 

controls is weakened by 

some significant gaps. 

A number of reoccurring 

exceptions found in testing of 

the procedures and controls. 

There is poor compliance 

with controls and procedures 

which may put operational 
objectives at risk of not being 

fully achieved. 

Minimal For all risk areas there are 

significant gaps in the 

procedure and control. This 
will affect the effectiveness of 

organisation’s overall control 
framework. 

Overall, there is a poor 

system of internal control in 

place.  

Due to the absence of 

effective controls and 

procedures, no reliance can 
be placed on their 

effectiveness. 

There is a substantial non-

compliance with controls and 

procedures or compliance 
with inadequate controls and 

procedures, which will likely 
put the council’s objectives at 

significant risk of not being 

achieved. 

P
age 48



Internal Audit Progress Report  
October 2022 

Page 12 

 

Table 4: Priority of Actions 
 

Priority Rational 

Critical Critical issue that could have a significant impact on a key system, function, or process objectives, and also the council's 
objectives. 

High  Control weakness that could have a serious impact on a key system, function, or process objectives. 

Medium Control weakness that could have an impact on the achievement of a key system, function or process objectives or an 
issue, which, if addressed, would contribute towards raising the standard of internal control. 

Low Minor control weakness that does not have an impact upon the achievement of a key system, function or process 

objectives. Implementation of the recommendation would strengthen the control framework and/or improve compliance 
with existing controls. 

 

  

P
age 49



Audit Planning Update and Progress 
Report

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 10



2

1. Audit Planning Update and Progress

2. National publications

3. Revised ISA315P
age 51



Section 01:

Audit Progress

P
age 52



4

Purpose of this report

This report provides the Audit Committee with an update on progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors. 

2020/21 Audit

Financial statements audit

We presented our Audit Completion Report for 2020/21 to the October 2021 meeting, and noted a number of areas of work as remaining outstanding at that point in time. We reported progress against the 
outstanding areas of work in our progress report to the March 2022 Committee and noted there was an outstanding issue relating to the accounting treatment of the pension liability for social care staff who 
transferred across to the NHS as part of the integration of health and social care services.

The Council has decided they should recognise the pension liability for the services transferred to the NHS as ultimately, this liability lies with the Council. They are also applying the statutory override for pension 
accounting. We are currently discussing the disclosure requirements for this change in accounting policy which will also require a prior period adjustment.

Three issues relating to the valuation of the Council’s infrastructure assets, investment in Manchester Airport shares and the fair value disclosures of the airport loans  have arisen during our 2021/22 audit which will 
apply retrospectively to the 2020/21 financial statements:

• Property, Plant & Equipment – the resolution to the sector-wide accounting issue on infrastructure assets has progressed. Government published a statutory override which came into effect at the end of 
December 2022. CIPFA published their update to the Code of Practice on 11 January 2023. Once the Council has considered this guidance, additional work will be required by the finance team to determine the 
adjustments needed to the accounts. Once this is provided, we will carry out our audit work in order to conclude on this area.

• The Council’s valuation expert revised their value of the Council’s shareholding in Manchester Airport Holdings Limited, reducing the value of the investment by £14.3m in 2020/21. This amendment also impacts 
on the reported 2019/20 valuation, reducing it by £8.9m, along with impacts on the Other Comprehensive Income in the CIES and disclosure notes. The corresponding adjustment reduces the unusable 
reserves.. We are currently discussing the disclosure requirements for this amendment including the prior period adjustment.

• The Council get information from an external expert on the fair values of loans for disclosure in the accounts. The expert applied a different methodology in 2021/22 to that applied in 2020/21. Consultation with 
our internal experts identified that the methodology applied for 2021/22 is equally applicable to 2020/21 and therefore should have been applied in both years. This is a disclosure amendment for 2020/21.

We will report all remaining areas at the conclusion of the audit.

Value for money arrangements

We reported our value for money commentary in our progress report to the June 2022 Committee. The commentary will be incorporated into our Auditor’s Annual Report when the opinion has been given on the 
financial statements.

Whole of Government Accounts (WGA)

Whilst the National Audit Office has issued its auditor instructions for the 2020/21 WGA process they are yet to decide on a sample of authorities to undergo additional audit procedures. We have not submitted the 
required certification to the NAO as we have not yet given the opinion and we are still unable to fully conclude this matter.

P
age 53



5

2021/22 Audit

The detailed Audit Strategy Memorandum for 2021/22 was reported to the October 2022 meeting and there have been no changes to the risks identified since that date.

Financial statements audit

We are nearing completion of our financial statements audit for the year ending 31 March 2022. We expect to report our draft Audit Completion Report to the next Audit and Accounts Committee meeting. 

The key areas of work outstanding are:

• Fraud, laws and regulations – responses from management and those charged with governance to our requests for information.

• Payroll – reconciliation of the amounts included in the accounts to the payroll system and detailed testing of transactions.

• Property, plant and equipment – documentation of detailed testing, the resolution of the sector-wide accounting issue on infrastructure and our audit work on the Council’s share of the land at Manchester 
Airport and the accounting treatment of its provisions.

• Leases and PFI – resolution of final queries.

• Net Pension Liability – we received confirmation from the GM Pension Fund auditor that they had completed their programme of work as we requested. The report from the Pension Fund auditor noted that the 
draft Pension Fund financial statements included a non-material understatement in the valuation of investment assets. Our estimate of the impact on the Council’s pension assets is that they are understated by 
£10.5m. The Net Pension Liability is consequently overstated by the same amount. We will discuss this with the Council finance team, and will include any misstatements in our final Audit Completion Report at 
the conclusion of our audit.

Value for money arrangements

We have not yet received the Council’s updated self assessment of its arrangements. We are completing our fieldwork on the Council’s arrangements for the 2021/22 financial year, and intend to report the findings 
from our work on the Council’s value for money arrangement in our final Audit Completion Report. 

There are no matters arising from the fieldwork completed to date to report to the Committee.  

2022/23 audit

We will commence our planning for the audit of the 2022/23 financial statements and value for money arrangements at the conclusion of the 2021/22 audit. We highlight for the Audit Committee a change to an 
auditing standard (known as ISA 315) which applies from 2022/23. We have included, at section 3 of this report, a summary of the changes and the expected impact on our audit work. We will liaise with the finance 
team and will include further details in our formal 2022/23 audit reports.

P
age 54



Section 02:

National publications

P
age 55



7

National publications

Publication/update Key points

Financial Reporting Council (FRC)

1 FRC Major Local Audit Inspection Report Outcome of the FRC inspection of audit quality from 2020/21 audits

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountability (CIPFA)

2 Integrating Care CIPFA has published a report entitled, ‘Integrating care: policy, principles and practice for places’.

National Audit Office (NAO)

3 Government Shared Services
The NAO published its report Government Shared Services which examines whether the government’s latest Shared Services Strategy 

is on track to deliver. 

4 Departmental Overview 2021-22
The NAO has produced an overview of the Department for Levelling up, Housing & Communities’ (DLUHC’s) spending and 

performance for 2021-22

Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities

5
Local government finance policy statement 2023-24 to 2024-

25
The policy statement sets out the government’s intentions for the local government finance settlement for the next 2 years.

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd

6 Publication of the 2022/23 fee scale PSAA has published the 2022/23 audit fee scale following consultation.

7 Directory of Auditor Appointments from 2023/24 PSAA has published its Directory of Auditor Appointments from 2023/24 following the completion of the 2022 procurement.

P
age 56



8

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

Financial Reporting Council

1. FRC Major Local Audit Inspection Report - October 2022

The FRC is responsible for monitoring the quality of the audits of the largest health and 
local government entities (called Major Local Audits or MLAs). They do this by annually 
inspecting  a sample of MLAs from each of the audit firms who deliver this work. In their 
most recent publication, they reported on their review of 20 MLAs, three of which related to 
Mazars. The ICAEW also reviewed 17 non-MLAs (none from Mazars).

For Mazars, the FRC found that all 3 files reviewed met the expected standards. This 
was the second successive year of 100% compliance. Whilst the sample size is small 
and focused on the higher risk audits, the improvement does reflect the investment we 
have made in people, technical expertise, specialists (such as building on in-house 
valuation team and strengthening our methodology. Maintaining and improving audit 
quality is a key objective of the firm and our investment will continue. 

Overall, the FRC found that the number of audits categorised as good or limited 
improvements required has remained consistent with the prior year. However, there was an 
increase in the number of audits assessed as requiring significant improvements and they 
deemed this as unacceptable. 

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/aeb9149f-7bf9-45f2-802d-ca7b055b457e/Major-Local-
Audits.pdf

P
age 57

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/aeb9149f-7bf9-45f2-802d-ca7b055b457e/Major-Local-Audits.pdf


9

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

CIPFA

2. CIPFA publishes integrating care report – December 2022

CIPFA has published a report entitled, ‘Integrating care: policy, principles and practice for places’. The report provides an overview of the changes since the Health and Care 
Act 2022 was introduced and discusses what integration is seeking to achieve. It considers the wider health and care landscape in the current climate and addresses the 
remaining challenges at place level.   

The recommendations and case studies it contains are intended to influence the development of further policy and guidance by central government, and to provide support 
for practitioners at local level. The purpose of the report is to help health and local government partners to find effective solutions to the challenges of health and care 
integration. 

https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/press-release-cipfa-publishes-integrating-care-report

P
age 58

https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/press-release-cipfa-publishes-integrating-care-report


10

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

National Audit Office

3. Government shared services – November 2022

The NAO published its report Government Shared Services which examines whether the government’s latest Shared Services Strategy is on track to deliver. It aims to 
answer the following questions:

• Has the government made progress since we last reported on shared services in 2016? (Part One)

• Are the right conditions in place for the government to deliver its proposed efficiencies and savings? (Part Two).

• Has the government put in place mitigating actions to address the future challenges it faces in delivering its strategy? (Part Three)

The report concludes the the government’s previous shared services strategies failed to deliver their intended cost savings and other benefits. Its new Shared Services 
Strategy is highly ambitious and, while most departments consider the cluster model a sensible approach, there are several fundamental elements yet to be put in place that 
are jeopardising the success of the strategy. For example, the Cabinet Office is still unclear on the extent of the benefits this programme can be expected to bring. It is 
difficult to judge what progress has been made on enablers such as process and data convergence.

The reports highlights concerns that these gaps cause uncertainty for departments and mean that the Cabinet Office will repeat past failures. The NAO, therefore, cannot 
conclude that this programme is on track to demonstrate value for money. 

https://www.nao.org.uk/reports/government-shared-services/#downloads

4. Departmental Overview 2021-22: Department for Levelling Up, Housing & Communities - December 2022 

The NAO has produced an overview of the Department for Levelling up, Housing & Communities’ (DLUHC’s) spending and performance for 2021-22. DLUHC spends nearly 
£38 billion each year to support economic growth and housing across the country, in collaboration with local authorities. It has overall responsibility in central government for 
local authorities’ funding. Along with other bodies, DLUHC oversees the core accountability system for local authorities.

The guide summarises the key information and insights that can be gained from the NAO’s examinations of DLUHC and related bodies in the sector in England, and 
DLUHC’s Annual Report and Accounts.

https://www.nao.org.uk/overviews/departmental-overview-2021-22-department-for-levelling-up-housing-communities/

P
age 59

https://www.nao.org.uk/reports/government-shared-services/#downloads
https://www.nao.org.uk/overviews/departmental-overview-2021-22-department-for-levelling-up-housing-communities/


11

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities

5. Local government finance policy statement 2023-24 to 2024-25 – December 2022

The local government finance policy statement sets out the government’s intentions for the local government finance settlement for the next 2 years, providing councils with 
greater certainty on key aspects of their funding to inform their budget setting process and help them to plan for the future.

For the core settlement the Business Rates Multiplier for 2023-24 will be frozen at 49.9p and Revenue Support Grant (RSG) will increase in line with CPI.

For council tax the bespoke council tax referendum principle of up to 3% or £5, whichever is higher, for shire districts remains.

In respect of the remaining settlement grants, the Rural Services Delivery Grant will remain unchanged, in recognition of the inflationary pressures across the sector the 
Lower Tier Services Grant will be repurposed along with a proportion of the expired New Homes Bonus legacy payments to create a new one-off, funding guarantee. This 
will ensure that all authorities will see at least a 3% increase in their Core Spending Power before any decision they make about organisational efficiencies, use of reserves, 
and council tax levels. There will also be new rounds of New Homes Bonus (NHB) payments in 2023-24.

These proposals are subject to consultation which will last for 4 weeks from 19 December 2022 to 16 January 2023.

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-finance-policy-statement-2023-24-to-2024-25/local-government-finance-policy-statement-2023-24-to-2024-25

P
age 60

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-finance-policy-statement-2023-24-to-2024-25/local-government-finance-policy-statement-2023-24-to-2024-25


12

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd

6. News release: Publication of the 2022/23 fee scale – November 2022

PSAA has published the 2022/23 audit fee scale following consultation. Information on the fee scale and consultation is available. Most audit work under this fee scale will 
be undertaken from April 2023 onwards.

The fee scale applies for the audit work to be undertaken by appointed auditors in respect of the 2022/23 financial statements at relevant principal authorities that have 
opted into PSAA’s national auditor appointment arrangements for the period 2018/19 to 2022/23.

Auditors will undertake their work under the requirements of the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office on behalf of the 
Comptroller and Auditor General, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the 
professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

Under the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015, the 2022/23 fee scale must be published by 30 November 2022 and cannot be amended after that date. Any 
subsequent changes in national requirements or local circumstances relating to the 2022/23 audits will therefore be the subject of fee variations.

The 2022/23 fee scale is the last in the current appointing period which is under the 2017 audit contracts. New contracts will apply from the 2023/24 audit following a 
procurement during 2022. PSAA will consult on the fee scale for the 2023/24 audit in early autumn 2023.

https://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors-and-fees/list-of-auditor-appointments-and-scale-fees/2022-23-auditor-appointments-and-audit-fee-scale/

7. Directory of Auditor Appointments from 2023/24 – December 2022

PSAA has published its Directory of Auditor Appointments from 2023/24 following the completion of the 2022 procurement. The Board agreed the appointments at its 
meeting on 16 December 2022.

https://www.psaa.co.uk/2023/01/directory-of-auditor-appointments-from-2023-24/

P
age 61

https://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors-and-fees/list-of-auditor-appointments-and-scale-fees/2022-23-auditor-appointments-and-audit-fee-scale/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/2023/01/directory-of-auditor-appointments-from-2023-24/


Section 03:

Revised ISA315

P
age 62



Revised ISA 315
14

Revised auditing standard for Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement: 

ISA (UK) 315 (Revised 2019) 

(Effective for audits of financial statements for periods beginning on or after December 15, 2021)

ISA (UK) 315 (Revised 2019) introduces major changes to the auditor’s risk identification and 

assessment approach, which are intended to drive a more focused response from auditors 

undertaking work to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to address the risks of material 

misstatement. The main changes relevant to your 2022/23 audit are outlined below:

• Enhanced risk identification and assessment

The standard has enhanced the requirements for the auditor to understand the entity and its 

environment as well as the applicable financial reporting framework to identify the newly 

introduced inherent risk factors to drive risk identification and assessment (subjectivity, 

complexity, uncertainty, change, and susceptibility to misstatement due to management bias or 

fraud). Using these inherent risk factors, the auditor assesses inherent risk on the “spectrum of 

inherent risk”, at which the higher end lies significant risks, to drive a more focused response to 

the identified risks. It should also be noticed that the standard requires the auditor to obtain 

sufficient, appropriate audit evidence from these risk identification and assessment procedures 

to form the basis of their risk assessment.

The standard also increases the focus on auditors identifying the assertions where the inherent 

risk lays. For clarity, we include a table of assertions:

• Greater emphasis on IT

In response to constantly evolving business environments, the standard has placed an increased 

emphasis on the requirements for the auditor to gain an understanding of the entity’s IT environment 

to better understand the possible risks within an entity’s information systems. As a result, auditors 

are required to gain a greater understanding of the IT environment, including IT general controls 

(ITGCs). However, the standard acknowledges the fact that there is a need for scalability in gaining 

this understanding and provides more detailed guidance on how to approach the topic depending on 

the complexity of the commercial software and/or IT applications.

Completeness Is the balance complete?

Accuracy & valuation Are transactions accurately recorded and assets and 

liabilities appropriately measured?

Classification Is the balance classified correctly?

Occurrence Did the transaction occur?

Existence Does the item exist?

Rights & obligations Does the entity own the item?

Cut-off Is the item recorded in the correct financial year?

Presentation & disclosure Is the item presented in the accounts appropriately?

P
age 63



Revised ISA 315
15

• Increased focus on controls

Off the back of the emphasis for auditors to gain a greater understanding of the IT environment, 

the standard has also widened the scope of controls deemed relevant to the audit. Auditors are 

now required to increase their understanding of controls implemented by management, as well 

as assess the design and implementation of those controls, which include ITGCs.

Impact on the audit of the Council

Our risk assessment procedures will be more granular than in the prior year and we will be seeking 

more information from the Council to ensure that we can document our detailed understanding of 

the Council and the environment that it operates in. This will build on the existing strong knowledge 

of the Council we already have in place from our previous years' audits. In documenting our risk 

assessment, we will need to input additional time to assess inherent risks of the spectrum that the 

auditing standard requires.

In terms of IT, we have established a good understanding of the Council’s IT environment and at 

this stage are not aware of any significant changes. We will keep this under review as part of our 

planning and interim audits. We do not plan to test ITGCs as we have designed our approach to 

gain assurance from substantive testing, which in our view remains the most efficient approach to 

take.

P
age 64



Mazars

Mazars is an internationally integrated partnership, specialising in audit, accountancy, advisory, tax 

and legal services*. Operating in over 90 countries and territories around the world, we draw on the 

expertise of 40,400 professionals – 24,400 in Mazars’ integrated partnership and 16,000 via the 

Mazars North America Alliance – to assist clients of all sizes at every stage in their development.

*where permitted under applicable country laws.

www.mazars.com

Partner: Karen Murray

Email:  karen.murray@mazars.co.uk

LinkedIn:

www.linkedin.com/company/Mazars

Twitter:

www.twitter.com/MazarsGroup

Facebook:

www.facebook.com/MazarsGroup

Instagram:

www.instagram.com/MazarsGroup

WeChat:

ID: Mazars

Contact Follow us:

Manager: Cath Andrew

Email:  cath.andrew@mazars.co.uk

P
age 65



Updated: 13.01.23        Page 1 of 4 

Audit and Accounts Committee - Work Programme 2022/23 
 

SCHEDULE OF COMMITTEE - KEY DATES & AGENDA ITEMS 
 

27th JULY 2022 - Meeting Date and Agenda Items Responsible officer (s) 

Member Training, n/a   

A&AC Meeting, 27th July 2022, 2pm 
Part 1 

 

1. Annual Report of the Chair Cllr Turner 

2. Code of Corporate Governance Iolanda Puzio / Simon Bleckly 

3. Draft Annual Governance Statement  Iolanda Puzio / Simon Bleckly 
4. 2021-22 Strategic Risk Register (following presentation of new Risk Register, a half-year and end of year 

progress update will be presented in October 2021 and July 2022. In between these reports ad hoc 
requests on risks can be presented to the Committee if required). 

Jacquie Russell / Emma Reid 

5. Draft Statement of Accounts  Joanne Hardman 
6. School Audit Annual Summary David Smith / Laura Hindley 

7. External Auditors Updates: Update and External Audit Fee Letter Karen Murray - Mazars 
8. AOB  

Part 2 
1. None 

 

-  

 

-  

26th OCTOBER 2022 - Meeting Date and Agenda Items Responsible officer (s) 

Member Training, n/a   

A&AC Meeting, 26th October 2022, 2pm 
Part 1 

 

1. Private meeting for committee with External Auditors Karen Murray - Mazars 

2. PSAA Update Jo Hardman 
3. Internal Audit Charter Simon Bleckly / David Smith 

4. Internal Audit Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme Simon Bleckly / David Smith 
5. Internal Audit Progress Report (including Counter Fraud Bribery and Corruption Half Year Update) David Smith 

6. External Auditors Updates: Karen Murray - Mazars 
7. Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) -  Annual Report 2021/22 Iolanda Puzio / Simon Bleckly 

8. AOB  

Part 2 
               -- 

 
-- 

 

P
age 66

A
genda Item

 10a



Updated: 13.01.23        Page 2 of 4 

 

 

 

PROVISIONAL DATE: 30th NOVEMBER 2022 - Meeting Date and Agenda Items Responsible officer (s) 

Member Training, n/a   

A&AC Meeting, TBC date / time 
Part 1 

 

1. Annual Governance Statement  Iolanda Puzio / Simon Bleckly 

2. Audited Statement of Accounts Joanne Hardman 
3. External Auditors Updates: Karen Murray - Mazars 

4. AOB  
Part 2 

1. None 
 

-  

25th JANUARY 2023 - Meeting Date and Agenda Items Responsible officer (s) 

Member Training, TBC date / 2pm 
 Annual Evaluation of the Effectiveness of the Audit Committee (How the Committee adds value to the 

Council) including briefing on the Self-Assessment Exercise  

 
David Smith / Simon Bleckly 

A&AC Meeting, TBC date / 2.30pm 
Part 1 

 

1. Private meeting for committee with Internal Auditors (Simon Bleckly) Simon Bleckly / David Smith 

2. Update on the provisional budget settlement Joanne Hardman 
3. 2021-22 Strategic Risk Register Jacquie Russell / Emma Reid 

4. Internal Audit Progress Report David Smith 
5. External Auditors Updates: Karen Murray - Mazars 

Part 2 
1. Current investigations update 

 
David Smith 

-  

22nd MARCH 2023 - Meeting Date and Agenda Items Responsible officer (s) 

Member Training, TBC date / 2pm  

A&AC Meeting, TBC date / 2.30pm 
Part 1 

 

1. Annual Evaluation of the Effectiveness of the Audit Committee – Outcome Simon Bleckly / David Smith 

2. Audit and Accounts Committee Terms of Reference   Simon Bleckly / David Smith 
3. Report on the Effectiveness of Internal Audit   Simon Bleckly / David Smith 

4. Draft Internal Audit Strategy and Plan   Simon Bleckly / David Smith 
5. Internal Audit Progress Report   David Smith 

6. External Auditors Updates: Karen Murray - Mazars 

P
age 67



Updated: 13.01.23        Page 3 of 4 

7. AOB  
Part 2 

1. Current investigations update 
 
David Smith 

-  

JUNE - Meeting Date and Agenda Items Responsible officer (s) 

Member Training, TBC date / 2pm  

A&AC Meeting, TBC date / 2.30pm 
Part 1 

 

1. Annual Report of the Chair Cllr Turner 

2. Draft Code of Corporate Governance Simon Bleckly / David Smith 
3. Annual Report of the Head of Internal Audit (to inc Counter Fraud Bribery and Corruption Update) Simon Bleckly / David Smith 

4. Final Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 2021/22 David Smith 

5. External Auditors Updates: Audit Planning Update and Progress Report Karen Murray - Mazars 
6. AOB  

Part 2 
1. Current investigations update 

 
David Smith 

_ 

 

 

Occasional Agenda Items / Abeyance List 

Introduction to the use of RIPA – Training Session  
Role of the Audit Committee – Training Session  

Risk Management and the Assurance Framework – Training Session   

Apprenticeship Levy Update  
External Audit Contract Procurement / Opting-in to Public Sector Audit Appointments    

 

Attendees 

P
age 68



Updated: 13.01.23        Page 4 of 4 

 

Councillors (8) 

 Les Turner (Chair) 

 Nathaniel Tetteh (Vice-Chair) 

 Damian Bailey 

 Roger Jones 

 Teresa Pepper 

 Mike Pevitt 

 Gina Reynolds 

 Alexis Shama 

 

Co-opted Members (2) 

Edoardo Bucci (21.10.20 – 20.10.23) 

1 x vacancy 

 

Invitee 

 Councillor Bill Hinds - Lead Member for Finance & Support Services  

 

Quorum - 3 (Members)  

 

 

Regular Officers 

Joanne Hardman - Chief Finance Officer 

Simon Bleckly – Head of Internal Audit (from April 2021) 

David Smith – Deputy Head of Internal Audit 

Tony Thompstone - Strategic Finance Manager 

Iolanda Puzio - City Solicitor  

 

Cath Andrews – Mazars  

Karen Murray - Mazars 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 69


	Agenda
	4 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the previous meeting.
	7 Half Year 2022-23 Strategic Risk Register Update (Joint Head of Planning & Performance - Emma Reid; Principal Performance Officer - Bev Hinks)
	Half-year 2022-23 Strategic Risk update - AAC 25 January 2023

	9 Internal Audit Progress Report - Deputy Head of Internal Audit (David Smith)
	10 External Auditors Updates - Mazars
	10a Work programme 2022/23

